
 

1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JULY 17, 2017 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 3, 2017: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Ordinance Amendment ï Chapter 3, Alcoholic Liquor.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen 

comment regarding the proposal to amend Chapter 3, Alcoholic Liquor, Section 3-2, Consumption in 
public, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso to allow the sale/consumption of alcohol on 
city property under specified circumstances. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Chemical Bank Account Signatories.  Consider resolution designating authorized signers on City 

accounts at Chemical Bank.



 

2 
 

2. Boards and Commissions Appointments.  Approve the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 
appointments: 

 
Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Lori Bailey* LDFA/Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 06-30-2018 

Jake Adams Planning Commission 
(filling unexpired term of C. Weaver) 06-30-2019 

Nell Ann Hebukeiser Parks & Recreation Commission 06-30-2019 
Rick Morris Parks & Recreation Commission 06-30-2019 
Randy Woodworth Parks & Recreation Commission 06-30-2019 

Jerry Hebukeiser Parks & Recreation Commission 
(filling unexpired term of S. Nelson) 06-30-2018 

 
3. Free Food Distribution Permission.  Approve the application from the United Methodist Care Network 

for use of a portion of the southwest corner of the Comstock Parking Lot on September 17, 2016 from 
8:00amï 12:00pm to conduct a free food distribution, waive the insurance requirement, and 
authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1373 formalizing the action.  
 

4. Change Order No. 1 ï 2017 Street Program Engineering Services Contract.  Approve Change Order 
No. 1 to the 2017 Street Program Engineering Services Contract with Fleis & Vandenbrink 
Engineering, Inc. increasing the contract $10,902.50 for additional street survey work and revised 
construction plans, and authorize payment to the engineer for said additional services. 
 

5. Purchase Authorization ï Fire Pickup Equipment & Installation.  Waive competitive bidding 
requirements, authorize the purchase and installation of emergency services equipment on the new 
Fire Pickup by Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service L.L.C. in the amount of 
$8,281.00, and further authorize payment to the vendor upon satisfactory installation of said 
equipment. 
 

6. Purchase AuthorizationðPublic Safety Vehicle Equipment Changeover.  Waive competitive bidding 
Requirements, authorize contract with Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service 
L.L.C. for the removal, supply, and installation of public safety equipment in the new police utility 
vehicle in the amount of $7,173.00, and further authorize payment to the vendor upon satisfactory 
completion of the work. 
 

7. Purchase Authorization ï Interview Room Camera System.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, 
authorize contract with Coban Technologies, Inc. for the purchase of a camera system and the 
installation of coordinating software for the Public Safety interview room in the amount of $8,945.00, 
and further authorize payment to the vendor upon satisfactory delivery of equipment and completion 
of the work contracted. 
 

8. Warrant No. 546.  Authorize Warrant No. 546 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Waste Management Landfill charges-6/16/17-6/30/17 Various $5,753.19 
Logicalis, Inc. Network engineering-June 2017 Various $7,056.00 
Caledonia Charter 
Township 

Caledonia Utility Fund payment-4/1/17-
6/30/17 Water $22,190.6

7 
Owosso Charter 
Township 

Owosso Charter Township 2011 Water 
Agreement      Water $11,417.7

6 
William C. Brown, PC Professional services-6/13/17-7/10/17 General $8,577.92 
 

9. Check Register ï June 2017.  Affirm check disbursements totaling $1,612,229.83 for June 2017. 
 



 

3 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. Ordinance Amendment ï Chapter 2, Administration.  Consider amendments to Chapter 2, 

Administration, Article VI, Finance, Division 3, Purchases, contracts and sales, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Owosso to update the procedures for the purchase and sale of services, 
supplies, materials and equipment. 
 

2. Oakhill Cemetery Drainage Issue.  Consider initiation of a community project to improve the drainage 
in Oakhill Cemetery. 
 

3. Airport Agreement Amendment.  Consider a resolution authorizing the execution of an addendum to 
the Owosso Community Airport Multi-Unit Airport Operations and Management Agreement setting the 
Cityôs annual contribution for the ten year period starting in 2018. 
 

4. Schedule of City Manager Evaluation.  Consider scheduling the City Managerôs evaluation for 
Monday, August 7, 2017 and cancelling the fifth Monday meeting set for July 31, 2017. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. C. Weaver, Planning Commission.  Letter of Resignation. 
2. N. Bradley Hissong, Building Official.  June 2017 Building Department Report. 
3. N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  June 2017 Code Violations Report. 
4. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  May & June 2017 Police Report. 
5. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  June 2017 Fire Report. 
6. Downtown Development Authority.  Minutes of June 7, 2017. 
7. Planning Commission.  Minutes of June 26, 2017. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, August 07, 2017 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Board of Review ï term expires December 31, 2019 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/LDFA ï term expires 06-30-2018 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/LDFA ï term expires 06-30-2020 
Building Board of Appeals - term expires June 30, 2019 
Building Board of Appeals ï Alternate - term expires June 30, 2018 
Historical Commission ï term expires December 31, 2019 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals 
with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or 
emailing the following:  Owosso City Clerkôs Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: 
(989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is 
www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   



Draft 1 07-03-2017 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF JULY 3, 2017        
7:30 P.M. 

 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR CHRISTOPHER T. EVELETH 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  COUNCILMEMBER BURTON D. FOX 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: SCOTT GOULD, ACTING CITY ATTORNEY 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, 

Councilmembers Loreen F. Bailey (7:43 p.m.), Burton D. Fox, Elaine M. 
Greenway (7:56 p.m.), Daniel A. Law, and Robert J. Teich, Jr. 

 
ABSENT: None. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Fox and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2017 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fox to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 19, 2017 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 18, Nuisances 
 
The proposed amendment would allow the placement of handbills on private property by City personnel, 
contractors employed by the City, and/or utility company personnel in the course of official business. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment to 
Chapter 18, Nuisances, Article III, Littering and distribution of handbills, Section 18-58, Distributing 
handbills at inhabited private premises. 
 
There were no citizen comments received prior to, or during the meeting. 
 
Whereas, the Council, after due and legal notice, has met and there being no one to be heard, motion by 
Councilmember Fox that the following ordinance be adopted:  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 784 
 



Draft 2 07-03-2017 

AUTHORIZING THE REVISION CHAPTER 18, NUISANCES, SEC. 18-58, 
DISTRIBUTION OF HANDBILLS AT INHABITED PRIVATE PREMISES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, have adopted ordinances to control the 
distribution of handbills; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has reviewed the need to authorize city of Owosso personnel, contractors 
working for the city of Owosso, and other select individuals to post handbills on private property as a 
means of communication and information; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso does not intend to allow the posting of handbills for the purpose of 
solicitation. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  That Section 18-58 (b), Distributing handbills at inhabited private premises. 
Chapter 18, Nuisances, Article III, Littering and distribution of handbills, shall be amended to read as 
follows: 
 
Sec. 18-58. - Distributing handbills at inhabited private premises.  
 
(a) No person shall throw, deposit or distribute any handbill in or upon private premises which are 

inhabited, except by handing or transmitting any such handbill directly to the owner, occupant, or 
other person present in or upon such private premises.  
 

(b) The provisions of (a) shall not apply to the distribution of mail by the United States, nor to 
newspapers, except that newspapers shall be placed on private property in such a manner as to 
prevent their being carried or deposited by the elements upon any street, sidewalk, or other public 
place or upon private property.  Nor shall the provisions of (a) apply to the posting of notices by city 
personnel, contractors employed by the city, or employees of utility providers recognized by the city if 
said notices are for purposes other than solicitation. 

  
(c) A non-profit organization may obtain a permit from the city clerk to distribute handbills at inhabited 

private premises without leaving such handbill with an owner, occupant or other person. The permit 
shall be valid for two (2) days and the non-profit organization may only apply for one (1) permit during 
an eleven-month period. Permits can only be issued for community service projects and cannot be 
issued for fundraising activities. The permit applicant shall fully describe activities and rationale for the 
permit. If the city receives complaints from residents that they do not want the handbills, the permit 
applicant shall retrieve the handbills from the resident in a timely fashion. The permit application shall 
provide contact information so that such complaints may be forwarded. The city clerk may reject a 
permit application if it does not meet the criteria in this subsection or upon evidence of past abuses of 
this policy. 

 
SECTION 2.  AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerkôs office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective July 24, 2017. 

 
Motion supported by Councilmember Teich. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Law, Fox, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmember Teich, and Mayor 

Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 



Draft 3 07-03-2017 

 
ABSENT: Councilmembers Bailey and Greenway. 
 
 
Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 2, Administration 
 
The proposed amendment would update the procedures for the purchase and sale of services, supplies, 
materials and equipment. 
 
City Manager Donald D. Crawford summarized the proposed changes saying dollar thresholds had been 
increased, phrasing regarding cooperative purchasing was added, and the section on the disposal of 
obsolete property revamped. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment to 
Chapter 2, Administration, Article VI, Finance, Division 3, Purchases, contracts and sales. 
 
 There were no citizen comments received prior to, or during the meeting. 
 
(Councilmember Bailey arrives at 7:43 p.m.) 
 
Councilmember Fox said he was concerned that the proposed ordinance would allow the sale of historical 
items without proper oversight.  City Manager Crawford suggested that another paragraph regarding the 
disposition of art and historical items could be added to the ordinance. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fox to table the item for a period of no more than 30 days to allow the addition 
of language regarding art and historical items. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
  
AYES:  Councilmembers Bailey, Teich, Fox, Law, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilmember Greenway. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Gary Ballinger, Corunna resident, commented regarding the increase in water and sewer rates.  Mayor 
Eveleth indicated that no one wanted to raise water and sewer rates but the rates needed to go up to 
ensure the system is sustainable. 
 
Councilmember Fox said he had spoken with the County Drain Commissioner about the drainage issues 
at Oak Hill Cemetery and the Drain Commissioner had indicated that the ditch running through the 
cemetery was not a county drain.  Mr. Fox said he would like to organize a community project to help the 
cemetery with the drainage issue and would like the item placed on the July 17th agenda for 
consideration.  The Mayor indicated he wouldnôt mind discussing the item again to see if an agreement 
could be reached. 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Crawford detailed the latest Project Status Report. 
 



Draft 4 07-03-2017 

(Councilmember Greenway arrives at 7:56 p.m.) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osika said she would like to see a special presentation planned for Hathaway Drive once 
it is completed. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey  to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
First Reading & Set Public Hearing – Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 3, Alcoholic Liquor.  
Conduct first reading and set a public hearing for Monday, July 17, 2017 to receive citizen comment 
regarding the proposal to amend Chapter 3, Alcoholic Liquor, Section 3-2, Consumption in public, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso to allow the sale/consumption of alcohol on city property under 
specified circumstances as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 99-2017 
    
FIRST READING & SET A PUBLIC HEARING FOR AN ORDINANCE TO MODIFY THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES CONCERNING CHAPTER 3 - ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR 
   
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances contains Sec. 3-2 provisions pertaining to alcoholic 
liquor and consumption in public; and 
  
WHEREAS, the sections of the ordinance are pertaining to consumption on the public streets, alleys, 
parks, or in any other public places requires modification and clarification; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Michigan, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan. 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 3, Alcoholic Liquor, Section 3-2, Consumption in public, paragraph 
(c) of the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances pertaining to exceptions shall be amended to read as 
follows: 
 
Sec. 3-2. - Consumption in public. 
 
(a)  Except as provided in paragraph (c) below, no alcoholic liquor shall be consumed on the public 

streets, alleys, parks, or in any other public places, including any store or establishment doing 
business with the public not licensed to sell alcoholic liquor for consumption on the premises; nor 
shall anyone who owns, operates or controls any such public establishment or store permit the 
consumption of alcoholic liquor therein. 

 
(b)  Except as provided in paragraph (c) below, no person shall have in his or her possession any open 

bottle, open cans or other open containers, containing alcoholic beverages, on a public street, alley, 
park, or in any other public place. 

 
(c)  Exceptions:  
 

(1) Notwithstanding contrary Provisions of this section to the contrary notwithstanding, and with 
the approval of the city council, alcoholic liquor may be consumed on the public streets and alleys 
immediately adjacent to business establishments licensed for the sale of alcoholic beverages for 
consumption on the premises in areas of the public streets and alleys for which an occupancy 
permit has been issued by the city engineer pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 29 of this code. 

 
(2) Notwithstanding contrary provisions of this section, and with the approval of the city 

council, beer and wine may be sold and consumed on the public streets, alleys, and public 



Draft 5 07-03-2017 

parking lots for events sponsored by a not-for-profit organization holding the required 
Michigan liquor license or permit within a fenced-in area. 

 
(3) Within Curwood Castle Park, public events where wine and beer may be sampled and sold 

by a winery or brewery under a Michigan license or permit.  During public or private events 
within the arts center and Curwood Castle and a fenced-in area immediately adjacent to 
either structure, liquor, wine and beer may be dispensed, provided that three days prior to 
the event the city clerk shall be provided a certificate of liability insurance with a limit of at 
least $1,000,000 including "host liquor liability" coverage for alcoholic beverages served at 
no charge.   Either "host liquor liability" or "liquor liability insurance" must include the city 
of Owosso as an additional insured for primary and non-contributory limits of liability. 

 
SECTION 2.  REPEAL CLAUSE.  All ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the 
extent of the conflict. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 
amendment for any reason is held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 
 
SECTION 4.  PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing is set for Monday, July 17, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. for the 
purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed amendments. 
 
SECTION 5.  AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerkôs office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect after its passage, approval and 
publication according to law. 

 
Baker Challenge 5k Run/Walk Permission.  Approve application from Brian Steel on behalf of Baker 
College for permission to close the following streets for the 2017 Baker Challenge 5k Run/Walk on 
Saturday, September 9, 2017 from 7:00am to 12:00pm, and authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1372 
formalizing the action. 

 
Change Order No. 3 – WWTP Primary Clarifier Replacement Contract.  Approve Change Order No. 3 
to the WWTP Primary Clarifier Replacement Contract with Titus Welding Company for the replacement of 
the circular baffle, circular weir plates, and trough of the sludge skimmer apparatus in the amount of 
$221,045.00, including a contingency amount of $20,000.00, and further approve payment to the 
contractor upon satisfactory completion of the work or portion thereof as detailed: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 100-2017 
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 WITH TITUS WELDING COMPANY    
FOR THE MANUFACTURE, DELIVERY, AND INSTALLATION OF CIRCULAR 

TROUGH, WEIR AND BAFFLE PLATES FOR THE NORTH PRIMARY CLARIFIER AT 
THE WASTEWATER PLANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Wastewater Plant 
Replacement Fund for the replacement of Primary Clarifier components,  and  
 
WHEREAS, the existing Primary Clarifier circular trough was damaged during normal operations, and 
Titus Welding Company of Farmington Hills, Michigan has provided a proposal for the  replacement and 
installation of new circular trough, weir and baffle plates, and   
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Services & Utilities has reviewed the proposal and verified the 
replacement components needed to restore the north clarifier to operational capability, and recommends 



Draft 6 07-03-2017 

authorizing Titus Welding Company to provide the necessary materials, labor, and installation services in 
the amount of $201,045.00 plus contingency with prior written approval in the amount of $20,000.00. 
   
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with Titus Welding Corporation for the purchase of materials, 
manufacture, and installation of a new circular trough, weir and baffle plates at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Titus Welding 

Company in the amount of $201,045.00 for manufacturer, delivery, and installation of a 
new circular trough, weir and baffle plates plus contingency with prior written 
authorization, in the amount of $20,000.00 for a total of $221,045.00.  

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Wastewater Plant Fund 599-901-977.000. 
 

Bid Award – 2018 Street Program Engineering Services.  Approve bid award to Fleis & Vandenbrink, 
Engineering, Inc. for engineering design and construction administration services for the 2018 Street 
Program in the amount of $251,000.00, and further approve payment to the firm upon satisfactory 
performance of the work or portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 101-2017 
  

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 

FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 
FOR THE 2018 STREET PROGRAM 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, is considering the necessary resurfacing 
of various streets as outlined within its RFP for professional engineering services; and  
  
WHEREAS, this project requires the services of a professional engineering firm; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City sought proposals from its QBS list of firms to perform such work; and  
  
WHEREAS, Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. is selected as the most qualified firm to perform such 
work and offers to complete full design and construction administration services of said project in return 
for compensation in an amount not to exceed of $251,000.00. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ the firm of Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. to provide 
professional engineering services for the 2018 Street Program. 

  
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Addendum No. 3 to an Agreement for Professional Engineering 
Services between the City of Owosso, Michigan and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, 
Inc.  

  
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amount of 

$251,000.00 to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. upon successful completion of 
stated work. 



Draft 7 07-03-2017 

  
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the 2016 Unlimited Obligation Bond Proceeds  

($158,500.00) and Water Mains & Hydrants, Acct No. 591-901-972.000 ($92,500.00) and 
other funds as appropriated. 

 
Purchase Authorization - Police Utility Vehicle.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize the 
purchase of one 2017 Ford Police Utility in the amount of $29,649.00 from Owosso Motors, Inc. d/b/a 
Signature Auto Group of Owosso via Macomb County Contract No. 71-15, and authorize payment up to 
the quoted amount upon satisfactory delivery of said vehicle as described below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 102-2017 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 
PURCHASE OF POLICE VEHICLES WITH SIGNATURE AUTO GROUP OF OWOSSO 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a police department requiring the 
use of police vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso desires to purchase one new police vehicle and a bid was received from 
Owosso Motors, Inc. d/b/a Signature Auto Group of Owosso, holder of the contract for police vehicles 
with Macomb County; and it is hereby determined that Signature Auto Group of Owosso is qualified to 
provide such vehicles and that it has submitted the responsible and responsive bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso may waive competitive bidding requirements when purchasing equipment 
in coordination with another municipality. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to purchase one 2017 Ford Interceptor Utility Police Vehicle from 
Signature Auto Group of Owosso, utilizing the Macomb County contract, for a cost 
to the City of Owosso of $29,649.00 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached, Contract for Services between the City of 
Owosso, Michigan and Signature Auto Group, Inc. in the amount of $29,649.00. 

 
THIRD: Authorize payment to Signature Auto Group in the amount of $29,649.00 upon 

delivery of the police vehicle. 
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Police Division Capital Outlay fund 101- 
 300-978.000. 

 
Warrant No. 545.  Authorize Warrant No. 545 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Waste Management Landfill charges-6/1/17-6/15/17 Various $11,106.75 

  
Motion supported by Councilmember Greenway. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmember Greenway, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Law, Fox, Teich, 

Bailey, and Mayor Eveleth. 



Draft 8 07-03-2017 

 
NAYS: None. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
 
Election Equipment Grant Application 
 
Motion by Councilmember Teich to approve application to the State of Michigan for new election 
equipment and related accessories and further approve payment of $8,642.34 upon satisfactory receipt of 
said equipment as detailed: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 103-2017 
 

TO AUTHORIZE APPLICATION FOR A GRANT 
TO PURCHASE NEW VOTING EQUIPMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Owosso wishes to apply to the Secretary of State for a grant to 
purchase a new voting system, which includes precinct tabulators, Absent Voter Counting Board (AVCB) 
scanners, accessible voting devices for use by individuals with disabilities, and related Election 
Management System (EMS) software; and 
 
WHEREAS, partial funding for the new voting system and the first five years of maintenance will be 
provided by the State, and will include a combination of Federal Help America Vote Act and State-
appropriated funds.  Remaining funding will be provided by the City of Owosso; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso plans to begin implementation of the new voting system in November 
2017. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Owosso City Clerk is authorized to submit said Grant 
Application on behalf of the City of Owosso. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Fox. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Fox, Teich, Bailey, Greenway, Law, and Mayor 

Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
 
Special Use Permit – 1000 State Street  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the application of Amber Coe for a special use permit for 
1000 State Street for the operation of a group day care home. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 104-2017 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR 1000 STATE STREET 
 
WHEREAS, a petition for a special use permit has been filed by Amber Coe with the City of Owosso 
requesting permission to operate a group day care home at 1000 State Street pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 38-454 (f) of the City Code of the City of Owosso, on the premises described as follows:  
      



Draft 9 07-03-2017 

LOT 19 & 21, BLK 1, CITY ASSESSORS PLAT 4; and 
      
WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law, the City of Owosso Planning Commission heard as an 
item of business on June 26, 2017, considering same; and 
      
WHEREAS, after consideration of the request, the following use subject to special conditions was 
adopted by resolution by the Owosso City Council on July 3, 2017:  ñSpecial Use Permit ï Group day 
care homeò.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to grant a special use permit to Amber Coe for 1000 State Street, 
Owosso, Michigan. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached, Special Use Permit between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and Amber Coe. 

      
I.         GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS      
      
The Owner shall comply with all state, city and other governmental regulations relative to the 
operation of a group day care home.  The specific standards by which this permit must continue 
to meet eligibility are attached as Exhibit A.  
      
II.         INSPECTION DATE OF THE PERMIT  
      
July 3, 2017 
      
The land use shall be inspected by the building inspector on or about July 3, 2018 (on the first 
anniversary) from the date of approval by the City Council to assure compliance with the 
permit.  Inspections may be more frequent if complaints about the land use are registered.  
      
The Planning Commission may introduce site plan controls where it is found that the action of the 
permit have caused an adverse impact based on any one or more of the general standards of 
Section 38-453 of the Owosso City Code.  
      
III.        HOURS OF OPERATION  
 
According to state regulations, a group day care home may only operate 16 hours a day.  Ms. 
Coe states she will only operate from 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.  
      
IV.        BUFFER ZONE  
 
Play yard is required to have an eight (8) foot setback from all property lines. 
      
V.         PERMIT COMPLIANCE, CONDITIONS THEREOF  
          

A.   Approval given by the City Council, under which premises are not used or work is not 
started within one (1) year or when such use or work has been abandoned for a period of 
one (1) year, shall lapse and cease to be in effect.  The building inspector shall notify the 
applicant in writing, mailed to the address listed on the application, that such land use 
permit has expired.  

          



Draft 10 07-03-2017 

B.   Violations - Article XXIV of the City of Owosso Ordinance Code outlines provisions for 
non-compliance in terms of fines, imprisonment, and costs of prosecution.  

      
VI.         MODIFICATION OF THE SITE PLAN  
 
Current site plan submitted to planning commission shows play yard at 800 square feet.  Site plan 
will need modification to illustrate the required 900 square foot play yard.  Additionally, site plan 
shows no side yard setback for play yard.  Revised site plan will depict a minimum of eight (8) 
feet for the side yard setback.  
      
VII.         PERMITS  
      
Uses subject to special conditions may require one or more permits as specified in Article XIX, 
Section 38-454 of the City of Owosso Ordinance Code.  No other permit will be issued until a site 
plan has been approved by the Planning Commission and use permit has been approved by the 
City of Owosso City Council.  
      
VIII.         SPECIAL CONDITIONS  
      
The following conditions are required in conjunction with the provisions of the Ordinance Code 
and for approval of the land use:  
          

A. The permit shall be reviewed upon sale of the property to a new owner. 
B. Play yard shall be a minimum of 900 square feet. 
C. A minimum setback of eight (8) feet from property lines shall be established for the play 

yard. 
D. Dedicated caregiver parking of one (1) space shall be located in the driveway of 1000 

State Street.      
      

Exhibit A  
 

Group day care home in the R-1, R-2, RM-1 and RM-2 residential districts: 
 
1) Minimum site size shall be seven thousand two hundred (7,200) square feet. 
2) There shall be one (1) off-street parking space for a caregiver not a member of the family. 
3) Play areas: There shall be provided on the site a usable outdoor play area of nine hundred 

(900) square feet, exclusive of required front yard and side yard, and of driveways and 
parking areas. The minimum setback for the play area shall be the greater of eight (8) feet 
from the property line of sixteen (16) feet from any adjacent residential structure. The 
planning commission may increase this setback up to forty (40) feet from property lines 
based on local conditions. 

4) The planning commission may introduce site improvement measures or restricted areas of 
operation to assure safety and lessening of nuisances as it may relate to the activities of 
pickup and drop-off of a proposed home's clients. 

5) Such facilities shall be duly licensed by the state department of social services. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Teich, Greenway, Bailey, Law, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmember 

Fox, and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
 



Draft 11 07-03-2017 

Setting Strategic Planning Session 
 
The Council held a discussion to consider parameters for a strategic goal setting session.  During the 
course of their dialog they debated whether to use Ryan Cotton as the facilitator, whether to use a 
facilitator at all, who would be involved in the goal setting session, when to meet, and what would be 
discussed.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Teich to set a special meeting for Saturday, August 26, 2017 to hold a goal 
setting discussion centered on City departments.  The discussion will be facilitated by the City Manager 
and will include Council, department heads, local organizations, and the public. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Fox, Teich, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Bailey, Greenway, 

Law, and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Joint Trail Authority.  Minutes of May 16, 2017. 
Zoning Board of Appeals.  Minutes of June 20, 2017. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Gary Ballinger, Corunna resident, said he feels the Council doesnôt listen to the public, the public should 
have some input, and the water/sewer bills should be lowered. 
 
Mayor Eveleth wished everyone a safe and happy 4th of July. 
 
Councilmember Fox said he has heard lots of comments about fireworks going off at all times of day and 
night, he asked for a little more enforcement. 
 
Mayor Eveleth inquired whether the state had returned any more control over fireworks to local 
governments, it was noted they had not. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, July 17, 2017 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Board of Review ï term expires December 31, 2019 
Building Board of Appeals - term expires June 30, 2019 
Building Board of Appeals ï Alternate - term expires June 30, 2018 
Historical Commission ï term expires December 31, 2019 
Parks & Recreation Commission ï 2 terms expiring June 30, 2017 
Parks & Recreation Commission ï term expires June 30, 2018 
 



Draft 12 07-03-2017 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey for adjournment at 8:36 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867‐2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

 
 

    
DATE:  July 11, 2017 
 
TO:  City Council 

 
FROM:  Donald Crawford, city manager 
 
SUBJECT: Liquor ordinance amendment 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive the proposed ordinance and schedule a public hearing at a future 
meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: Over the past several years, questions have been raised about the consumption and 
the sale of beer and wine in city parking lots (Curwood Festival in the city hall/public safety building 
parking lot and chamber of commerce fall festival in the Exchange Street parking lot).  Questions have 
also arisen about proposed art center and historical commission events in Curwood Castle Park.  The 
latest concerns a vendor providing wine samples and selling wine in the park during the Thursday night 
farmersô market. 
 
Owosso is not alone in addressing these issues.  Some have written multipage ordinances.  We have 
attempted to prepare a two-paragraph amendment to the existing ordinance.  This should suffice for the 
immediate future. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: None 
 
 
Document originated by:   city manager 

 
 

AKKirkland
Text Box
Memo reprinted from the meeting of July 3, 2017



ORDINANCE NO.  
    

AN ORDINANCE TO MODIFY THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  
CONCERNING CHAPTER 3 - ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR 

   
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances contains Sec. 3-2 provisions pertaining to alcoholic 
liquor and consumption in public; and 
  
WHEREAS, the sections of the ordinance are pertaining to consumption on the public streets, alleys, parks, 
or in any other public places requires modification and clarification; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Michigan, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan. 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 3, Alcoholic Liquor, Section 3-2, Consumption in public, paragraph 
(c) of the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances pertaining to exceptions shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 3-2. - Consumption in public. 
 
(a) Except as provided in paragraph (c) below, no alcoholic liquor shall be consumed on the public streets, 

alleys, parks, or in any other public places, including any store or establishment doing business with the 
public not licensed to sell alcoholic liquor for consumption on the premises; nor shall anyone who owns, 
operates or controls any such public establishment or store permit the consumption of alcoholic liquor 
therein. 

 
(b) Except as provided in paragraph (c) below, no person shall have in his or her possession any open 

bottle, open cans or other open containers, containing alcoholic beverages, on a public street, alley, 
park, or in any other public place. 

 
(c) Exceptions:  
 

(1) Notwithstanding contrary provisions of this section, and with the approval of the city council, 
alcoholic liquor may be consumed on the public streets and alleys immediately adjacent to 
business establishments licensed for the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the 
premises in areas of the public streets and alleys for which an occupancy permit has been issued 
by the city engineer pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 29 of this code. 

 
(2) Notwithstanding contrary provisions of this section, and with the approval of the city council, beer 

and wine may be sold and consumed on the public streets, alleys, and public parking lots for events 
sponsored by a not-for-profit organization holding the required Michigan liquor license or permit 
within a fenced-in area. 

 
(3) Within Curwood Castle Park, public events where wine and beer may be sampled and sold by a 

winery or brewery under a Michigan license or permit.  During public or private events within the 
arts center and Curwood Castle and a fenced-in area immediately adjacent to either structure, 
liquor, wine and beer may be dispensed, provided that three days prior to the event the city clerk 
shall be provided a certificate of liability insurance with a limit of at least $1,000,000 including "host 
liquor liability" coverage for alcoholic beverages served at no charge.   Either "host liquor liability" 
or "liquor liability insurance" must include the city of Owosso as an additional insured for primary 
and non-contributory limits of liability. 

 
SECTION 2.  REPEAL CLAUSE.  All ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the 
extent of the conflict. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 
amendment for any reason is held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 



portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 
 
SECTION 4.  AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerkôs office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect August 7, 2017. 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  ∙   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ∙   WWW.CI .OWOSSO.MI .US  
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: July 11, 2017 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
SUBJECT: Chemical Bank Account Signatories 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend approval of the attached resolution authorizing persons serving in the named capacities to 
sign on behalf of the City on the noted Chemical Bank accounts. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Periodically the City must update the list of authorized signers for its various bank related accounts.  
Since the last resolution was passed in July of 2015 the City has added the Deputy Treasurer position 
back to the roster and the list of authorized bank account signers must be amended to reflect this.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Amy K. Kirkland  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

NAMING THOSE AUTHORIZED TO SIGN  
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO 

FOR ACCOUNTS HELD AT CHEMICAL BANK 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is required by law to declare an official depository for city funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances dictates the City Clerk, or the Clerkôs Deputy, sign checks drawn on 
City accounts; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cityôs auditors recommend a counter-signature on said checks as a means of further 
security; and 
 
WHEREAS, from time to time the City must update the list of authorized signers to ensure it is current. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: that Chemical Bank, 100 East Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 be and is hereby 
designated as a depository of the funds of the City of Owosso, and that the said funds be 
subject to withdrawal upon checks, notes, drafts, bills of exchange, acceptances, 
undertakings or other orders for the payment of money when signed by the City Clerk 
and countersigned by any of the following:  Finance Director or City Manager, and in the 
case of the Retirement Fund Account only - City Treasurer or the Treasurerôs Deputy. 

SECOND:  that the above named Chemical Bank is authorized to pay any such checks, notes, 
drafts, bills of exchange, acceptances, undertakings or other orders; and also to receive 
the same for the credit of or in payment from the payee or any other holder without injury 
as to the circumstances of issue of the disposition of the proceeds thereof, whether such 
instruments are payable, individually or otherwise, to the order of any person signing 
and/or counter-singing such instruments, or to the order of any of the other officers of the 
City, and whether such checks or other instruments are deposited to the individual credit 
of any person signing and/or counter-singing such instruments, or to the individual credit 
of any of the other officers of the City. 

THIRD:  that any and all endorsements for or on behalf of the City of Owosso upon checks, drafts, 
notes or instruments for deposit or collection made with the said Chemical Bank may be 
written or stamped endorsements of the City of Owosso without any designation of the 
person making such endorsements. 

FOURTH:  that said Chemical Bank be promptly notified in writing by the City Clerk of the City of 
Owosso of any change in this resolution and that until it has actually received such notice 
in writing said Chemical Bank is authorized to act in pursuance of this resolution. 

FIFTH: that any of the above designated officers are hereby authorized to execute on behalf of 
the City signature cards, or other documents, containing the rules and regulations of the 
Bank and the conditions under which deposits are accepted, and to agree on behalf of 
this City to those rules, regulations, and conditions. 

 
SIXTH: it is further certified that this resolution is within the power of the City as provided in the 

Charter and Ordinances of this City. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   July 10, 2017 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order # 1373 
 
 
Jack Wing, United Methodist Care Network member, has requested a parking lot 
closure for the ñMobile Food Pantry-Food Give Awayò by Greater Lansing Food Bank. 
 

LOCATION:   
 
Comstock Parking Lot – SW section of lot 
 

           DATE:   
 

9/16/17  
 

           TIME:    
 
   8:00 am – 12:00 pm 
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order No. 1373 in accordance 
with the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends 
approval, waiver of the insurance requirement, and authorization of a traffic control 
order formalizing the action. 
 

 

 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

 1373    7/6/17     10:00 am 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Parking Lot Closure 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
 
       Comstock Lot – SW section of parking lot  

   
          
 EVENT:    
   Mobil Food Pantry 
   Greater Lansing Food Bank 
   DATE:  September 16, 2017  8:00 am – 12:00 pm   
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 







 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: July 17, 2017 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order No. 1 ï 2017 Street Resurfacing Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Approval of Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. for 
additional engineering services for the 2017 Street Resurfacing Project in the amount of $10,902.50. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
On March 6, 2017, City Council awarded a contract to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. in the 
amount of $120,500.00 for professional engineering services for the 2017 Street Resurfacing 
Project.  City staff has since requested additional design engineering services of the consultant. 
Specifically, city staff requested the consultant to provide additional street survey and 
complete/revised construction plans for contractor bidding. Fleiss & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. is 
willing to perform these additional design engineering services at a cost of $10,902.50. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS  
 
Funds for this change order are available in Major Street Construction Account No. 202-451-818.000. 
 
 

 

 

Document originated by:  Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution for Change Order No.1 to Fleis & Vandenbrink, Inc. 
  (2) Change Order Request No. 1 from Fleis & Vandenbrink, Inc. 

 

 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
  

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO ADDENDUM NO. 3 TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. FOR  

ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR  
THE 2017 STREET PROGRAM 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with Fleis & 
Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. on March 6, 2017 for Engineering Services for the 2017 Street Program; 
and 
  
WHEREAS the city requests additional services of the consultant to provide preliminary survey and 
engineering services beyond the original contractual scope of services. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:  The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to amend the 2017 Street Program-Engineering Services Contract with 
Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. for a cost to the City of Owosso of $10,902.50. 

  
SECOND:  The mayor and city clerk are requested and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Change Order No. 1 to Addendum No. 3 to the Contract between 
the City of Owosso, Michigan and Fleis & Vandenbrink, Inc. 

  
THIRD:      The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amended 

amount of $131,402.50 to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. upon successful 
completion of stated work.  

  
FOURTH:   The above expenses shall be paid from the Major Street Construction Account No. 202-

451-818.000. 



CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
 

TO ADDENDUM NO. 3, 2017 STREET PROGRAM – ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT, 
OF THE GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT WITH 

FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
Design Engineering – Rd/Storm Sewer 
 
Item No. 1        Additional Surveying for Road Cross Sections: 
Field and office work to obtain three (3) topographic shots at each station along Phase 1, Chipman 
Street and Stewart Street.  Field surveyed elevations will be obtained at gutter left, road centerline, and 
gutter right at each 100-foot station. 
 
The above stated additional professional services shall be completed for a lump sum fee of $700.00.  
 
Item No. 2        Chestnut Street Improvements Addition 
Addition of Chestnut Street Improvements from South Street to W. Stewart Street. Professional services 
included CAD technician and project management.  Project management included QA/QC of plans, 
details, typical sections, special provisions, and project quantity takeoffs. Professional services 
presented below are based on the actual labor requirement (hours spent), and the additional 
professional services fee schedule presented in our proposal.  There is no additional markup or 
administration fee. 
 

CAD Technician: 16.25 hours @ $70 per hour = $1,137.50 
Project Manager: 6.00 hours @ $130 per hour = $780.00 
 Total = $1,917.50 

 
The above stated additional professional services shall be completed for a lump sum fee of $1,917.50. 
 
Item No. 3        Additional Roadway CAD Technician Services 
As mentioned in an email dated May 24, 2017, the completion of the street improvements required more 
effort than the estimated 120 hours (per Addendum No. 1) used to establish our anticipated professional 
services fee.  An additional professional services fee schedule was provided in our proposal for additional 
services beyond the anticipated scope of work.   Additional professional services included CAD 
technician and project management.  Project management included QA/QC of plans, details, typical 
sections, special provisions, management.  Project management included QA/QC of plans, details, 
typical sections, special provisions, and project quantities takeoffs. 
 
Items of work that increased our level of effort included the following: 

1.   Completion of base drawings that were less complete than originally anticipated. 
2.   Completion and re-orientation of plan sheets that were less complete than originally anticipated. 
3.   Moving project base maps to common coordinate system for topographic surveying, design, 

and stakeout of water main improvements now included in project. 
4.   Addition of Consumers Energy gas replacements and abandonments to the project plans. 
5.   Combining of Phase 1 and Phase 2 plans into a single project. 
6.   Additional quantity takeoffs. 
7.   Additional QA/QC of plans and special provisions. 

 
Below is a summary of our level of effort: 
 

Classification     Hours Estimated Actual Hours Spent 
CAD Technician 120 204.00 
Project Manager 16 34.50 

 
  



Professional services presented below are based on the actual labor requirement (hours spent) above the 
level of effort estimated and the additional professional services fee schedule presented in our 
proposal. There is no additional markup or administration fee. 

CAD Technician            84.00 hours @ $70 per hour =   $5,880.00 
Project Manager           18.50 hours @ $130 per hour = $2,405.00 

Total =      $8,285.00 
 
The above stated additional professional services shall be completed for a lump sum fee of $8,285.00. 
 
Summary:                                               
 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: 

Original Contract Price: 
 
$120,500.00 

Net  Increase  (Decrease)  from  previous  Change 
Orders No.                        to                        : 
 
$0.00 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: 
 
$120,500.00 

Net increase (decrease) of this Change Order: 
 
$10,902.50 

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: 
 
$131,402.50 

 
Prepared by Engineer 
 
Approved by Council:      
 
For the City:      For the Engineer: 
 
 
By:        By:        
       Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor           Principal In Charge 
 
 
Attest:        By:        
 Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk           Project Manager 
 
Date:        Date:        
 



 

9475 Holly Road, Suite 201 
Grand Blanc, MI 48439 

P: 810.743.9120 
F: 810.743.1797 

Change Order Request No. 1 - 2017 Street Improvement Project  www.fveng.com 

July 10, 2017 
 
 
 
Mr. Randy Chesney, P.E. 
City of Owosso 
City Hall, 301 West Main Street 
Owosso, MI 48867 
 
RE:   2017 Street Improvement Project, PO No. 000042183 
 Change Order No. 1 Request 
  
Dear Randy, 
 
We are hereby submitting a change order request for your review and consideration of the additional 
professional services requested by the City of Owosso related to the 2017 Street Improvement Project.   
 
Design Engineering – Rd/Storm Sewer 
 
Item No. 1 Additional Surveying for Road Cross Sections: 
Field and office work to obtain three (3) topographic shots at each station along Phase 1, Chipman Street and 
Stewart Street.  Field surveyed elevations will be obtained at gutter left, road centerline, and gutter right at 
each 100-foot station.   
 
The above stated additional professional services shall be completed for a lump sum fee of $700.00. 
 
Item No. 2 Chestnut Street Improvements Addition 
Addition of Chestnut Street Improvements from South Street to W. Stewart Street.  Professional services 
included CAD technician and project management.  Project management included QA/QC of plans, details, 
typical sections, special provisions, and project quantity takeoffs.  Professional services presented below are 
based on the actual labor requirement (hours spent), and the additional professional services fee schedule 
presented in our proposal.  There is no additional markup or administration fee. 

CAD Technician: 16.25 hours @ $70 per hour = $1,137.50 
Project Manager: 6.00 hours @ $130 per hour = $780.00 

        Total =  $1,917.50 
 

The above stated additional professional services shall be completed for a lump sum fee of $1,917.50. 
 
Item No. 3 Additional Roadway CAD Technician Services 
As mentioned in an email dated May 24, 2017, the completion of the street improvements required more effort 
than the estimated 120 hours (per Addendum No. 1) used to establish our anticipated professional services 
fee.  An additional professional services fee schedule was provided in our proposal for additional services 
beyond the anticipated scope of work.   Additional professional services included CAD technician and project 
management.  Project management included QA/QC of plans, details, typical sections, special provisions, 
and project quantities takeoffs. 
 
 
 



Randy Chesney, P.E. | City of Owosso │ July 10, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

Change Order Request No. 1 - 2017 Street Improvement Project 

Items of work that increased our level of effort included the following: 
1. Completion of base drawings that were less complete than originally anticipated. 
2. Completion and re-orientation of plan sheets that were less complete than originally anticipated. 
3. Moving project base maps to common coordinate system for topographic surveying, design, and 

stakeout of water main improvements now included in project. 
4. Addition of Consumers Energy gas replacements and abandonments to the project plans. 
5. Combining of Phase 1 and Phase 2 plans into a single project. 
6. Additional quantity takeoffs. 
7. Additional QA/QC of plans and special provisions. 

 
Below is a summary of our level of effort: 

Classification  Hours Estimated Actual Hours Spent 
CAD Technician  120   204.00 
Project Manager  16   34.50  

 
Professional services presented below are based on the actual labor requirement (hours spent) above the 
level of effort estimated and the additional professional services fee schedule presented in our proposal.  
There is no additional markup or administration fee. 

CAD Technician 84.00 hours @ $70 per hour =  $5,880.00 
Project Manager 18.50 hours @ $130 per hour =  $2,405.00 

        Total =  $8,285.00 
 

The above stated additional professional services shall be completed for a lump sum fee of $8,285.00. 
 
Summary: 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE:

Original Contract Price: 

$120,500.00 

 

Net Increase (Decrease) from previous Change 
Orders No.    to   : 

$0.00 

 
 
 
 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: 

$120,500.00 

 

Net increase (decrease) of this Change Order: 

$10,902.50 

 

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: 

$131,402.50 

 

 
Please contact me if you have any questions or need any additional information at this time. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK 

 
Geric L. Rose, P.E., P.S. 
Project Manager 
 



                       Memorandum 
 

TO:   City Council        
 
DATE:  July 10, 2017 
 
FROM:  Kevin Lenkart Chief of Public Safety    
 
IN RE:  Fire F250 PU Fitting 
 
 

 Request council approve payment to Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service 
L.L.C., for the purchase of equipment and labor to install equipment on 2017 Ford F250 Fire 
Vehicle.  

 
 Recommend council waive the competitive bid process. The cost of the changeover and 

installation is $8,281.00. The cost includes the purchase of equipment necessary to outfit the 
vehicle for use. Mid Michigan will outfit the new vehicle with light bars, siren, console, drawer 
slide-out.  

 
 Request council to approve payment to Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service 

L.L.C.  
 
 

  
 
  
 
  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
         

202 S. Water St.  Owosso, MI  48867      Phone (989) 725-0580   Fax (989) 725-0528 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR  

SUPPLY, AND INSTALLATION OF PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT 
IN A NEW FIRE VEHICLE 

WITH MID MICHIGAN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT SALES AND SERVICE L.L.C. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has purchased a new fire vehicle that 
need to have equipment installed in them; and 
 
WHEREAS, the new vehicle will require additional new public safety equipment to be properly outfitted for 
service; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso received a quote from Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and 
Service L.L.C. for the, supply of select pieces of new equipment, and the installation of all said 
equipment; and it is hereby determined that this company is qualified to perform the work requested; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to contract with Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and 
Service L.L.C. for the removal, purchase, and installation of public safety equipment 
in a City Fire vehicle in the amount of $8,281.00. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached, Contract for Services between the City of 
Owosso, Michigan and Mid-Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service 
LLC. 

 
THIRD: The Accounts Payable Department is hereby authorized to issue payment to Mid  

Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service L.L.C. in the amount of 
$8,281.00 upon delivery of the equipment and satisfactory completion of the work.  

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Police equipment fund 101-300-

978.000. 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract for Services Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales And Service L.L.C. 
 
 

Fire Pickup Equipment Purchase & Installation 
 
 

July 2017 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on July ____, 2017 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (ñcityò) and MID MICHIGAN 
EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT SALES AND SERVICE L.L.C. (ñcontractorò), a Michigan company, 
whose address is 2237 Aurelius Road, Holt, Michigan 48842. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to provide the services and equipment listed in the proposal entitled 
ñQuotation ï Up Fitting F250 Ford Pick upò, as attached, including all written modifications. 
  
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, the unit prices as given 
in the bid forms not to exceed eight thousand two hundred eighty-one dollars ($8,281.00).  No 
additional work shall be performed unless a change order is issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising under 
this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be effective 
and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of any provision 
will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 
become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 
including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt against 
compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as specified 
in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorneyôs fees resulting or 
alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 



 

associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractorôs behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the cityôs sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor  Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:       Date:  
 
 



Mid-Michigan Emergency Equipment 

Sales and Service LLC 
Phone 517-896-6114 or 517-896-4996 
Office 517-889-5425 Fax 517-709-3925 

midmichiganemergencyequipment@yahoo.com 
 

               QUOTATION 
To: Owosso Fire Department         1/17/17  
Attn: Director Kevin Lenkart 
Subject: Up Fitting F250 Ford Pick up  
 
FRONT OF THE UNIT: 
1 ETHFSS-SP Headlight Flasher           63.00 
4 ENFSSS3(R) Red N-Force Fixtures Mounted in Grill   130.00ea  520.00  
1 ES-100 Siren Speaker and Bracket        230.00 
 
SIDE OF THE UNIT: 
4 ENFSSS3(R) Red N-Force Fixtures 1 Mounted on Front Fender 
  and 1 Mounted Midship Unit on each side.    130.00ea  520.00 
 
ROOF OF UNIT: 
1 INTG-51  51” Federal Signal Configured with Scene and Arrow &All Red Light Bar             2,300.00 
 
INTERIOR OF UNIT: 
1 SSP2000 Federal Signal Siren Switch Box with Arrow Control     876.00 
 
REAR OF UNIT: 
1 ETFBSSN-P Tail Light Flasher           67.00 
2 ENFSSS3(R) Sound Off N-Force Fixtures Mounted Next to Lic. Plate 130.00ea  260.00 
1 410-9071 Jotto Desk 48” x 96” Aluminum Drawer Slide Unit with 3/4”  
 Plywood Floor                     1,585.00 
 
MISC.INSTALLATION PRODUCTS INCLUDING FREIGHT: 
1 Misc. Wire, Hardware, Fasteners        150.00 
1 Ignition Relay             45.00 
1 40 Amp Circuit Breaker            15.00 
1 Freight Charges           200.00 
 
INSTALLATION COSTS:   
1 Installation of above products                    1,450.00 
 
        Total for Project              8,281.00  
 
Thank You for allowing us to bid this project. We look forward working with you to its completion. 
 
Mike Creed 
Vice President 

mailto:midmichiganemergencyequipment@yahoo.com


                       Memorandum 
 

TO:   City Council        
 
DATE:  July 10, 2017 
 
FROM:  Kevin Lenkart Chief of Public Safety    
 
IN RE:  Police Vehicle Changeover 
 
 

 Request council approve payment to Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service 
L.L.C., for the purchase of equipment and labor to changeover the new 2017 Ford Police vehicle.  

 
 Recommend council waive the competitive bid process. The cost of the changeover is $7,173.00. 

The cost includes the purchase of equipment necessary to outfit the vehicle for use. Mid 
Michigan will strip an old police vehicle and outfit the new vehicle with light bars, console, 
screen and install DVR cameras and computer.  

 
 Request council to approve payment to Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service 

L.L.C.  
 
 

  
 
  
 
  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
         

202 S. Water St.  Owosso, MI  48867      Phone (989) 725-0580   Fax (989) 725-0528 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 

REMOVAL, SUPPLY, AND INSTALLATION OF PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT 
IN A NEW POLICE VEHICLE 

WITH MID MICHIGAN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT SALES AND SERVICE L.L.C. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has purchased a new police vehicle that 
need to have equipment and DVR cameras installed in them; and 
 
WHEREAS, the new vehicles will require additional new public safety equipment to be properly outfitted 
for service; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso received a quote from Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and 
Service L.L.C. for the removal of the old equipment, supply of select pieces of new equipment, and the 
installation of all said equipment; and it is hereby determined that this company is qualified to perform the 
work requested; and 
 
WHEREAS, a waiver of the bidding requirements is requested as professional services are exempt from 
competitive bidding and the estimated cost for the products to be purchased falls under the $5,000 
Council threshold. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to contract with Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and 
Service L.L.C. for the removal, purchase, and installation of public safety equipment 
in City Police vehicles in the amount of $7,173.00. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached, Contract for Services between the City of 
Owosso, Michigan and Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service 
L.L.C. 

 
THIRD: The Accounts Payable Department is hereby authorized to issue payment to Mid  

Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales and Service L.L.C. in the amount of 
$7,173.00 upon delivery of the equipment and satisfactory completion of the work.  

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Police equipment fund 101-300-

978.000. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract for Services Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment Sales And Service L.L.C. 
 
 

Public Safety Vehicle Equipment Changeover 
 
 

July 2017 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on July ____, 2017 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (ñcityò) and MID MICHIGAN 
EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT SALES AND SERVICE L.L.C. (ñcontractorò), a Michigan company, 
whose address is 2237 Aurelius Road, Holt, Michigan 48842. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to provide the services and equipment listed in the proposal entitled 
ñQuotation for up fitting of a Road Ready 2017 Ford SUV Utilityò, as attached, including all written 
modifications. 
  
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, the unit prices as given 
in the bid forms not to exceed seven thousand one hundred seventy-three dollars ($7,173.00).  No 
additional work shall be performed unless a change order is issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising under 
this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be effective 
and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of any provision 
will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 
become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 
including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt against 
compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as specified 
in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorneyôs fees resulting or 



 

alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 
associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractorôs behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the cityôs sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor  Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:       Date:  
 
 



Mid-Michigan Emergency Equipment 

Sales and Service LLC 
Phone 517-896-6114 or 517-896-4996 

Fax 517-887-7071 
midmichiganemergencyequipment@yahoo.com 

 
To:          Owosso Police Department 
Attn.       Chief Kevin Lenkart          2/21/17 
Subject: Quotation for up fitting of a Road Ready 2017 Ford SUV Utility 
 
1- C-VS-1400 Havis Equipment Console with Face Plates      302.00 
 
1- C-CUP2-1-A15 Console Mounted Dual Cup Holder        44.00 
 
1- C-ARM-103 Console Mounted Arm Rest        103.00 
 
1- Prisoner Screen Mounted Dual Gun Rack  (870/223 Colt)      406.00 
 
1- 475-0303 Jotto Center Slide Window Prisoner Screen      765.00   
 
1- 475-0789 Jotto Prisoner Screen Lower Extension Panel Set       95.00 
 
1- S-4702UINT13 Bio Seat with Cargo Screen with Window              1,232.00 
 
1- Federal Signal Integrity Configured Light Bar               1,982.50 
 
2- Coax Cable, Antenna Mounts     22.00ea.     44.00 
 
1- Ignition Relay             45.00 
 
2- 40 amp Circuit Breaker      20.00ea.     40.00 
 
1- Charge Guard           115.00 
 
1- Misc. Wire/ Hardware and Mag Mount Mic. Holder      200.00 
 
1- Shipping of Product for unit build         100.00  
Labor to include the following, Removal of related emergency equipment from retiring units, 
Installation of all above Emergency Equipment, as well as Installation of Camera System.           1,700.00 
          
                                                                                                                        Total for Project           7,173.00 
Thank you for the opportunity to bid this project, we look forward assisting you to its completion. 

mailto:midmichiganemergencyequipment@yahoo.com


                        
 

Memorandum 
 

TO:   City Council        
 
DATE:  July 10, 2017 
 
FROM:  Kevin Lenkart Chief of Public Safety    
 
IN RE:  Interview Room 
 
 

 Request council approve payment to Coban Technologies, Inc., for the purchase of equipment 
and labor to install interview room camera and software.  

 
 Recommend council waive the competitive bid process. The cost of the purchase and installation 

is $8,945.00. The cost includes the purchase of equipment necessary to purchase and install 
equipment and software.  Coban Technologies, Inc. is our current vendor for our in-car video 
system for patrol cars; this system will be integrated with our current system.  

 
 Request council to approve payment to Coban Technologies, Inc.  
 
 

  
 
  
 
  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
         

202 S. Water St.  Owosso, MI  48867      Phone (989) 725-0580   Fax (989) 725-0528 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 

PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION OF SOFTWARE  
FROM COBAN TECHNOLOGIES INC.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has police department requiring the use 
of cameras and software for an interview room; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso received the HGAC bid from Coban Technologies; and it is hereby 
determined that Coban Technologies is qualified to provide such cameras and software that it has 
submitted the responsible and responsive bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase cameras and software from Coban Technologies for a cost to 
the City of Owosso of $8,945.00.  

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Contract for Services between the City of Owosso, Michigan and 
Coban Technologies, up to the amount of $8,945.00. 

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Police Division Capital Outlay fund 101- 
 300-978.000. 
 
FOURTH: Authorize payment to Coban Technologies in the amount of $8,945.00 upon delivery of 

the cameras and installation of software. 
 
 
 



11375 W. Sam Houston Parkway South #800

Houston, TX  77031

P. 281-925-0488 | F. 281-925-0535

Quotation Expiration: 60 Days

Terms: Net 30 Days

FOB Point: Destination

20151202

Prepared for: Owosso Public Safety (Owosso, MI) Date

Address 202 S Water St  2/12/2017

City, State Owosso, MI 48867

Contact Kevin Lenkart

INTERVIEW ROOM SOLUTION List Price Quoted Quantity Total

SYSIN-06-I IP INTERVIEW RM SOLUTION - 

Interview Room Solution Software

Initial Year Maintenance 

Include up to 2 Camera Software License

$6,875.00 5,875.00$  1 $5,875.00

INT-CAM107 OEM- INT IP CAMERA W. EXTERNAL MICROPHONE, 3 YEAR WARRANTY $1,315.00 1,125.00$  1 $1,125.00

SCOPT-IP-02 IP INTERVIEW ROOM WALL SWITCH $300.00 275.00$     1 $275.00

WMAIN-121 COBAN IP Interview Room Software maintenance.  

(Includes maintenance for Server software and up to 2 IP Based camera software 

support and maintenance.)

$2,524.00 $0.00

WLIC-18 INTERVIEW ROOM SOFTWARE / CAMERA FIRST YEAR Per camera $286.00 $0.00

WMAIN-116 INTERVIEW ROOM SOFTWARE / CAMERA RENEWAL Per Camera $286.00 $0.00

WIR-21 CISCO SG300-10P 8 port, PoE, Gigabit SWITCH w. 3 YEAR WARRANTY $565.00 565.00$     1 $565.00

BACK OFFICE SETUP CONFIGURATION AND SERVICES List Price Quoted Quantity Total

LSET-17 BACKOFFICE SETUP PACKAGE A 

Initial project Deployment Includes 2 Day Onsite Back Office Setup 

(Configuration, Setup, Training).  Includes travel / accommodations for 2 nights.

$3,440.00 3,055.00$  0 $0.00

LSET-50 CCUBE Server Remote Setup $1,195.00 1,080.00$  1 $1,080.00

LSRV-08 Professional Services / Hr. $194.00 $0.00

SHIPPING List Price Quoted Quantity Total

LFEE-050 Shipping - In-Car Equipment (EDGE, M7 MDC, M7 VMDC, ALPR) $50.00 $0.00

LFEE-053 Shipping -  Fusion or 6-bay dock for bodycam $25.00 25.00$       1 $25.00

LFEE-054 Shipping -  Bodycam or single/double dock for bodycam $15.00 $0.00

LFEE-055 Shipping -  Back Office Hardware (Server, Auto DVD, Interview, Jail) Each $150.00 $0.00

$10,275.00

-$1,330.00

$8,945.00

$8,945.00

QT Version

Prepared by:

 Lee Forseth   (832-808-7815) 

Total List

Line Item Discount

Subtotal

Additional Discount (s)

Taxes (if applicable)

GRAND TOTAL

Quote #

695693-1

3/3/2017 Page 1



  

 

 
 
 

Statement of Work 
 

Prepared for: 

 

 
 
 

Date: July 13, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This document contains information and data which is proprietary to COBAN that shall not be disclosed outside 
COBAN and shall not be duplicated, used, or disclosed - in whole or in part - for any purpose. 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 2 

Table of Contents 
 
Table of Contents ..................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Project Overview ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Deliverables .............................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Project Location ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Server and Storage Requirement ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Workstation Minimum Specification Requirement: ................................................................................................ 4 

Hardware Requirement: ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

IT requirement: ......................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Assumptions ............................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Additional Requirements: ......................................................................................................................................... 5 

Admin and Officer Training ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

Admin and Officer Training Outline ......................................................................................................................... 6 

Validation................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Estimated Schedule ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Project Roles & Responsibilities ............................................................................................................................. 7 

CLIENTôs Responsibilities & Pre-Requisites .......................................................................................................... 7 

General Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................................................... 8 

FORCE MAJEURE ................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Project Change Management Procedure ............................................................................................................... 8 

Pricing and Billing ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Project Authorization and Notice to Proceed ........................................................................................................11 

Appendix I - COBAN Price Quote / Equipment and Service List ........................................................................12 

Appendix II - CLIENTôs Purchase Order ...............................................................................................................13 

Appendix III ï Clientôs W9 Form .............................................................................................................................14 

Appendix IV ï Clientôs Tax Exempt Certificate .....................................................................................................15 

Appendix V ï IP Interview Room Manufacturer Limited Warranty ......................................................................16 

Appendix VI ï Software License ............................................................................................................................21 

Appendix VII ï CommandÊ Service Terms and Conditions ...............................................................................23 

 
 

 
 
 
  
  

 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 3 

Statement of Work 
 

This Statement of Work (ñSOWò) defines the scope of work to be accomplished by COBAN under the terms and 
conditions set forth below and in its attachments.  The tasks to be performed by COBAN are defined and a preliminary 
schedule that will be determined during Project Initiation (Section 2.2).  In addition, the responsibilities of City of 
Owosso (ñCLIENTò) are also listed. 
 
Project Overview 
Provide COBAN IP Interview Room Systems to the CLIENT for the purpose of capturing video and audio during 
interview.  The key to a successful implementation is careful, professional approach to specification, construction and 
testing of the solution.  The follow section lays out Cobanôs strategies to complete this project with minimum risk and 
downtime. 
 
Deliverables 
( 1 ) IP Interview Room Solution 

( 1 ) IP Camera with 3-year Warranty 

( 1 ) Cisco, 8-port, PoE, Gigabit Switch with 3-year Warranty 

( 1 )    Back Office Setup Package A 

           2-Day Onsite Back Office Setup (Configuration, Setup, Training).  Includes travel / accommodations for 2 

nights. 

 
Project Location 

 
Owosso Police Department  

202 S Water St.    

Owosso, MI 48867    
 
Server and Storage Requirement 
The CLIENT will provide its own back end storage hardware and ensure the Server will meet COBANôs minimum 
specification requirements: 
 
Operating System Windows Server 2012 or higher (64 bit if RAM exceeds 4GB) 
Database Server Microsoft SQL Server 2012 R2 or 2014 
Processor  XEON E5-2609 or higher  
Memory 16 GB RAM or higher 
Graphics Card 512 MB Graphics Card 
USB Port  4 USB 2.0 port for upload cradle (Mobile HDD upload/download & Automated DVD) 
Hard Drive 500 GB Free Hard Disk Space or higher Operating system and Database drives should be deployed in a 

RAID 1 mirror RAID array. (It is recommended that these drives be separate from the video data drives 
for additional redundancy. Video data storage drives should be deployed in a RAID5+1 hot spare 
configuration.) 
(See section titled Video Storage Recommendations for more information on video storage) 

Ethernet Active Gigabit Ethernet Connection with assigned static IP address (Minimum of 2) 
Power Supply Redundant Power Supply 
Additional software  - VLC 2.0.5 

- Silverlight (if using Command Center client) 
- .Net Framework 4.5.1 or higher 
- .Net Framework 3.5 

 
Additional 
requirements for 
DVD Burning 

- DVD R/RW /CD R/RW +/- Drive 
- 4 GB RAM or higher 
- We do not recommend that agencies burn DVD’s directly from the server.  



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 4 

 
Video Storage Recommendations: 
The amount of storage space required for the solution may vary greatly from agency to agency.  For example, 4 TB of 
storage space may be more than sufficient for one agency, but not enough for another.  Please consider the following 
when calculating storage space: 

- Number of (R)ecording devices (Body Worn, In-car, Interview Room) 
- Number of (S)hifts per day the devices will be used 
- Number of (H)ours of video recorded per device per shift 
- Data of (V)ideo per hour recorded (file size : SD, HD, etc.) 
- Number of (D)ays the video will be retained 

 
The formula would be R x S x H x V x D 
Example of how to calculate storage: An agency has 20 Body Worn cameras that are used on a single shift per day 
and records on average 2 hours of video per shift.  The video size is 2.5 GB per hour and will be kept on the server for 
a minimum of 90 days. 
The amount of storage for this sample agency would be approximately 9 TB or 9,000 GB (20 x 1 x 2 x 2.5 x 90 = 
9000). 
 
Virtual Server Consideration 
When provisioning your virtual server, please create your server using as close to the provided specifications as 
possible.  This will ensure the most success with your back end Server. Our minimum processor core requirement is 
two cores.  
 
DVMS / Command Center application will be installed on the server.  COBAN Engineer will test connectivity and 
operability from the workstation to the server.  An authorized member of the CLIENTôs Information Technology 
Department MUST be on hand for this installation when the DVMS / Command Center storage devices are to be 
added to the CLIENT existing network. 
 
Workstation Minimum Specification Requirement: 
 Required Recommended 
Operating System Windows 7 Professional SP1 Windows 7 Professional SP1 

Processor Core 2 DUO, 2.2GHz or higher Intel Core i5 
Memory 2 GB RAM 4 GB RAM or higher 
Graphics Card 64 MB Graphics Card 1 GB Graphics Card (for HD quality playback) 
USB Port 2 USB 2.0 port for upload cradle (Mobile HDD 

upload/download) 
4 USB 2.0 port for upload cradle (Mobile HDD 
upload/download & Automated DVD) 

Hard Drive 320 GB Free Hard Disk Space 500 GB Free Hard Disk Space or above 
Ethernet Active Gigabit Ethernet Connection Active Gigabit Ethernet Connection 
Additional software - VLC 2.0.5 

- Silverlight (if using Command Center client) 
- .Net Framework 4.5.1 or higher 
- .Net Framework 3.5 
 

Additional 
requirements for 
DVD Burning 

- DVD R/RW /CD R/RW +/- Drive 
- 4 GB RAM or higher 

 
The equipment listed above only applies to workstations that the CLIENT will use for upload, view and export of 
recorded videos to and from the storage array.  Workstations that the CLIENT simply wishes to be able to view videos 
and run reports from the DVMS / Command Center CLIENT Software need only to be running Windows XP Pro, 
MPEG II Codec, and have an active Ethernet connection.  The DVMS / Command Center CLIENT Software may be 
loaded on to additional workstations (by the CLIENT) with no additional license fees incurred from COBAN. 
 
Hardware Requirement: 

• (1) Cat6 cable from the PoE switch to a dedicated Network interface port on the COBAN server  
• (1) Cat6 cable from the PoE switch to the Department LAN  



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 5 

• Cat6 cables runs from the PoE switch to each IP camera with max length of 330 ft. Extensions of 330ft can be 
accomplished with the use of optional inline PoE extenders (Provided by COBAN with written request from 
Client) a Max of 2 extenders may be used per camera. 

• (1) Cat5E/6 cable from each IP camera to the optional Remote Push Button Plate, if used. (Note: HD 
Covert/Pinhole cameras do not support this option) 

• (1) Cat5E/6 cable from the optional RFID reader on the wall to the camera PoE switch, if used. 
• All cables must be terminated and tested with RJ45 male plug connectors prior to technicianôs arrival. 
• Remote Push Button /RFID reader locations must have standard depth (Not shallow) single-gang boxes 

installed with the terminated cables routed and tested. 
 
IT requirement: 

• Static IP for each camera and server 
• Microsoft Silverlight installed on each work station with COBAN Command Center 

 
Assumptions 
• CLIENT is responsible to provide any necessary network addresses or other items needed to integrate into the 

network (if applied). 
• CLIENT is responsible to procure the back-end infrastructure equipment (such as, the Server, Raid Disk Hardware, 

Tape Library, Tapes, Transfer Workstation, etc.) outside of this SOW. 
• CLIENT is responsible for obtaining the software licenses (such as, Microsoft SQL, MS Server, TSM, etc.) outside 

of this SOW. 
• CLIENT is responsible for Identify, collect, and provide input information on legislation that would impact the 

development of video data retention policies. 
• CLIENT is to receive delivery of equipment specified in Appendix 1 at your designated location. 
 
Additional Requirements: 
Database: Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2 or Above 
Storage: Additional storage space must be allocated based on Clientôs retention requirement. (Estimate file size is 
2.3GB per camera per hour) 
 

o CLIENT should provide network connectivity between POE Switch and the Client LAN for viewing/control 
of the IP Interview Room System 

o CLIENT is responsible for all installation, connection and termination of the required cabling base on 
design documents provided by COBAN 

 
Admin and Officer Training 
The CLIENT has opted for ñTrain the Trainerò approach. COBAN will train the appropriate CLIENT personnel who in 
turn will be responsible for training the officers and other authorized CLIENT personnel on the operation of the COBAN 
DVMS / Command Center(C-CUBE) application.  Electronic user manuals on all equipment and applications installed 
will be provided to the CLIENT for review.  COBAN will provide one (1) day training; consist of two (2) sessions.  
Morning session (8am - 12pm) Administrator / Back Office Training; Afternoon session (1pm - 5pm) Officer / In-Car 
Training.  It is recommended that there be no more than eight (8) trainees per session. 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 6 

Admin and Officer Training Outline 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Validation 
COBAN will validate network access, push button start/stop recording, file retrieval, bookmark and database to confirm 
success. 

Hours System Administrator’s Training 

 
1 x 4 hrs. 

 
Solution Overview 
COBAN DVMS / Command Center(C-CUBE) Operation Overview 
System Operation and Management: 
Server Operation & Management 
Maintenance 
Server Maintenance  
 
Overall Review wrap-up 
 

Hours User’s Training 

 
1 x 4 hrs. 
 

 
System Training / Operation Demonstration 
System Training 
• Hardware Overview 
• System Operation  

• Activation 
• Camera View Screen  
• Camera View Screen (Enlarge) 
• Recording (Start & Stop) 
• Recording (Indicators & Functions) 
• Event Type Selection 
• Playback 
• Data Entry 

 
Back Office COBAN DVMS / Command Center(C-CUBE) Training 
Operation Demonstration 

• Video Search 
• Video Playback 
• Data Entry 
• Retain Video 

 
Overall Review wrap-up 

 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 7 

Estimated Schedule 
• Estimated Start Date: 60 days after receiving the signed SOW 
• Project Duration: 5 Days 
• Estimated End Date: Pending 
 
Reasonable effort shall be made to keep the schedule dates intact. 
COBAN shall not be responsible for delays or additional requirements imposed by any government agencies, labor 
disputes, fire, unavoidable casualties, or unforeseen conditions. 
 
Project Roles & Responsibilities 
COBAN Staffing Model 
 
Resource Involvement Responsibilities 
Representative 
Lee Forseth 
832.808.7815 ï Cell  
 

• Client Representative • Executive level communications between COBAN & 

CLIENT 

• Customer Satisfaction, resolution on escalated issues 
Project Manager 
Jennifer Ichikawa 
281.925.0488 x175 
 

• Resources Allocation 

• Monitors project 

progress 

• Resource planning & 

deployment 

• Status reporting 

• Issue escalation 

• Leads staffing requests and coordinates their 

deployment and timing at CLIENT locations 

• Conducts internal review of all deliverables  

• Review all COBAN documentation for completeness, 

accuracy and clarity 

• Monitors project progress and ensures effort is driving to 

meet CLIENT goals and requirements 

• Ensures client receives adequate status updates 

throughout project 
Solution Consultant(s) 
TBD 
281.925.0488 
 

• Solution Consulting • Reviews COBAN DVMS / Command Center 

• configurations for minimum requirements 

• Reviews network schemes and storage equipments 

• Assists with problem determination and problem 

isolation 
 
 
CLIENT’s Responsibilities & Pre-Requisites  
This SOW is provided based on the following requirements met by others and following key assumptions.  Any 
deviations from these assumptions that arise during the project shall be managed through the change management 
procedures.  Parties agree that any changes in the assumption may result in adjustment in pricing and project timeline.  
CLIENT understands additional services and fees may be required if inaccurate or incomplete data/information sis 
supplied to COBAN. 
 
• Provide a single point of contact for project coordination with COBAN. 
• Provide server specification to COBAN for validation. 
• Provide Microsoft Server 2008 License. 
• Provide Microsoft SQL 2008 License. 
• Notify COBAN 21 days in advance of schedules change. 
• Provide network connectivity resources. 
• CLIENT is solely responsible for the actual content of any data file, selection and implementation of controls on its 

access and use, and security of the stored data. 
• CLIENT will identify and make the interpretation of any applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and 

statutes and ensure that deliverables of the project meet those requirements. 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 8 

• If CLIENT makes facilities, software, hardware, networks or other resources available to COBAN, CLIENT is 
responsible for obtaining any licenses or approvals related to such resources that may be necessary for COBAN or 
its subcontractors to perform the Services, including the development of any deliverables.  COBAN will be relieved 
of its obligations to the extent CLIENTós failure to promptly obtain such licenses or approvals adversely affects 
COBAN's ability to perform its obligations.  If a third party asserts a claim against COBAN as a result of CLIENTôs 
failure to obtain these licenses or approvals, CLIENT agrees to reimburse COBAN for any costs and damages 
COBAN may reasonably incur in connection with such claim.  

• The CLIENT is responsible for maintaining its own ñDisaster Recoveryò policies and procedures for the 
reconstruction of lost or altered files, backup or saving of data or programs to the extent deemed necessary by the 
CLIENT and for actually reconstructing any lost or altered files, data or programs.  COBAN assumes no 
responsibility for the protection of The CLIENT data.  COBAN is not liable for damage to software or data caused 
by service to the computer hardware equipment, except to the extent that such damage is caused directly or 
indirectly by COBAN.  Any service / warranty work required on the workstation, server or other devices provide by 
the CLIENT in conjunction with the DICVS will be performed by the manufacturerôs representative from whom they 
purchased the devices from.  

• The CLIENTôs Information Technology Department will be responsible for making certain that any and all security 
settings (port openings, firewall settings, antivirus software, etc.) are made prior to the installation and testing of 
the storage equipment.  COBAN shall not be held liable for any of the following and is not limited to: network 
breach, data interception or loss of data due to those types events, virus / Trojan infection, if and when a situation 
should occur. It is highly recommended that the CLIENTôs Information Technology Department maintain a ñremoteò 
connection to the server for the remote support of the server by COBAN software engineers.  This connection 
need not be a ñconstant or always liveò type, but one that can be established easily as needed.  

 
General Terms and Conditions 
Warranty Conditions  
All supplies, equipment and services come with manufacturer's standard three (3)-year warranty.  COBAN will assign 
to the CLIENT all benefits of any manufacturer's warranty or any other guarantee which may apply to the same; such 
warranties shall begin when supplies or equipment are delivered to the CLIENT. 
 
Contracts 
All contracts and agreements between COBAN and the CLIENT shall strictly adhere to the statutes that are set forth in 
the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted by the State of Texas and as most recently revised.  PURCHASE 
CONTRACT will be put into effect by means of a Purchase Order(s) executed by authorized agents of the CLIENT. 
 
Tax Exempt Status 
All government entities exempt from payment of taxes under Chapter 20, Title 122A of the Revised 
Civil Statutes of Texas, for the purchase of tangible personal property, must supply COBAN with 
the appropriate documentation prior to or in conjunction with initial purchase. 
 
FORCE MAJEURE 
Neither party hereto shall be liable for delays or failure to perform with respect to this agreement due to (i) causes 
beyond the party's reasonable control and not avoidable by diligence, (ii) acts of God, epidemics, war, riots, or delays 
in transportation which are beyond the party's reasonable control and not avoidable by diligence, or (iii) inability for 
causes beyond its control and not avoidable by diligence to obtain necessary labor, materials, or manufacturing 
facilities, or delays caused by subcontractors due to similar causes.  In the event of any such delay (each such event 
being beyond the party's reasonable control and not avoidable by diligence), the date of performance shall be 
extended for a period equal to the time lost by reason of the delay. 
 
In the event of any suit or action under this Contract, venue for all causes of action shall be instituted and maintained in 
Fort Bend County, Texas.  The CLIENT and COBAN agree that the laws of the State of Texas shall govern and apply 
to the interpretation, validity and enforcement of this Agreement; and, with respect to any conflict of law provisions, the 
parties agree that such conflict of law provisions shall not affect the application of the law of Texas (without reference 
to its conflict of law provisions) to the governing, interpretation, validity and enforcement. 
 
Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
Project Change Management Procedure  
It is understood that it may become necessary to amend this SOW for reasons including, but not limited to, the 
following: 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 9 

• CLIENT changes to the scope of work and or specification for the services. 
• Unforeseen technical issues which are beyond the control of either party. 
• Non-availability of resources which are beyond the control of the either party. 
• Environmental or architectural impediments not previously identified. 
 
In the event either party desires to change this SOW, the following procedures will apply:  The party requesting the 
change will deliver a written change request document to the other party.  The change request will describe the nature 
of the change; the reason for the change; the effect the change will have on the scope of work, which may include 
changes to the deliverables, and the schedule; the effect on price. 
 
A change request may be initiated by either party for any material or service changes to the SOW.  The designated 
Project Manager of the requesting party will review the proposed change with his/her counterpart.  The parties will 
evaluate the change request and negotiate in good faith the changes to the services and the additional charges, if any, 
required to implement the change request.  If both parties agree to implement the change request, the appropriate 
authorized representatives of the parties will authorize the change request, indicating the acceptance of the changes 
by the parties.  
 
For the purpose of change requests, email notification of a change by the Project Manager and email notification of 
acceptance by the Project Manager shall constitute authorization by either party.  No oral order or commitment shall 
constitute a change to the SOW. 
 
Upon execution of the change request, the change request will be incorporated into, and made a part of, this SOW.  
Whenever there is a conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in a fully executed change request and those 
set forth in the original SOW, or previous fully executed change request, the terms and conditions of the most recent 
fully executed change request shall prevail. 
 
Defective Work 
Prior to Final Acceptance, if the CLIENT determines that the work, furnished under the SOW is not fully and completely 
in accordance with requirement of the Contract, CLIENT will give written notice and description of such non-
compliance to COBAN. COBAN will respond to the written notification with a detailed, written plan which will indicates 
the time and methods needed to bring the work in compliance with the contract.   
 
Pricing and Billing 
Pricing 
COBAN and the CLIENT agree to the COBAN Price Quote attached under Attachment I of this SOW and CLIENT 
Purchase Order that is attached under Attachment II of this SOW.  The Project Change Control Management outlined 
in Section 8.6 will be used if there are any pricing adjustments.  
COBAN will not begin work under this SOW until CLIENT has signed this SOW and we have received a valid Purchase 
Order for the project.  Subsequent orders will only be processed if COBAN receives formal written authorization in the 
form of a valid Project Change Authorization or Purchase Order. 
Pricing is based upon a direct transaction between COBAN and CLIENT without involving any 3rd party. 
 
Billing 
COBAN will invoice for all hardware and software components upon delivery.  The services listed are fixed price and 
will be invoiced once the services are rendered.  SOW that has multiple or partial deliveries, a separate invoice will be 
generated for each completed delivery. 
 
Terms 
Notice to proceed is constituted by a signed purchase order and signed Statement of Work.  Purchase orders are 
accepted via email at cindyc@cobantech.com or fax at 281.925.0535, Attn: Purchasing. 
 
Payments 
The CLIENT shall make payment within thirty (30) days following the receipt of COBAN's invoice.  A non-refundable 
surcharge of 3.00% will be added to each transaction for credit card payments.  Should additional work beyond the 
scope of the services detailed herein by COBAN be requested by the CLIENT, fees for such services will be negotiated 
with the CLIENT prior to performing such work. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:cindyc@cobantech.com


CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 10 

• Invoice shall be sent to:  
 

  

  

  

 
• Payment shall be mailed to:   
 

COBAN Technologies, Inc.   

Account Receivable     

11375 West Sam Houston Parkway South, Ste # 800 

Houston, TX 77031   



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 11 

Project Authorization and Notice to Proceed 
 
CLIENT agrees to the scope and terms and conditions identified in this Statement of Work. 
 
 
City of Owosso Police Department, MI COBAN Technologies, Inc, 
 
Signature: 

 
Signature: 

 
Print Name: 

 
Print Name: 

 
Title 

 
Title 

 
Address:      

 
Address:     11375 West Sam Houston Parkway South 

 
Address:      

 
Address:     Ste # 800, Houston, TX 77031 

 
Phone 

 
Phone:        281-925-0488 

 
Fax:              

 
Fax:            281-925-0535 

 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 12 

Appendix I - COBAN Price Quote / Equipment and Service List 

 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 13 

Appendix II - CLIENT’s Purchase Order 
 

 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 14 

Appendix III – Client’s W9 Form  
** Please provide a copy of your completed W9 

 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 15 

Appendix IV – Client’s Tax Exempt Certificate 
** Please provide a copy of your Tax Exempt Certificate if applicable 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 16 

Appendix V – IP Interview Room Manufacturer Limited Warranty 
(Hardware Repair Service) 
 
The following document details the COBAN Manufacturer Limited Warranty for the IP Interview Room System.  
COBAN Technologies, Inc. (ñCOBANò) warrants the COBAN Manufactured IP Interview Room System (ñPRODUCTò), 
against defects in material and workmanship under normal use and service for a period of one (1) years and, such 
warranties shall begin when the PRODUCT is delivered to the Original End User (ñCLIENTò).  This expressed Limited 
Warranty is extended by COBAN to the CLIENT purchasing the PRODUCT for purposes of governmental use only, 
and is not assignable or transferable to any other party.  This is the complete warranty for the PRODUCT 
manufactured by COBAN and it does not warrant the installation, maintenance, support or service of the PRODUCT 
unless a separate written agreement is made between COBAN and CLIENT.  Please refer to Software Maintenance 
Support Service Option for technical support and software support details. 
 
COBAN WARRANTY COVERAGE  
The warranty applies within all fifty (50) states of the United States of America. This Limited Warranty is null and void if 
the factory applied serial number or tamper evident labels have been damage, altered or removed from the product.  
COBAN, at their discretion, will at no charge, repair the PRODUCT (with new or reconditioned parts), or replace it with 
the same or equivalent PRODUCT (using new or reconditioned products), during the warranty period, provided that the 
CLIENT notifies COBAN according to the terms of this warranty.  The repaired or replaced PRODUCT is warranted for 
the remaining original applicable warranty period.  All returned parts of the PRODUCT shall become the property of 
COBAN. 
 
3RD PARTY HARDWARE WARRANTY 
 
IP CAMERA/MICROPHONE WARRANTY COVERAGE 
3-YEAR LIMITED HARDWARE WARRANTY 
 
Warranty Coverage 
Axis Communications ABôs (ñAxisò) warranty obligations are limited to the terms set forth below: 
Axis warrants the original purchaser (distributor) that the Axis Network Video Product, enclosed with this Limited 
Hardware Warranty will in respect of the hardware be free from defects in design, workmanship and materials under 
normal use for a period of three (3) years from the date of the original purchase (ñWarranty Periodò).  This Limited 
Hardware Warranty also applies for power supply, stand, camera housing and Power over Ethernet midspan/splitter, if 
included with the Axis Network Video Product on the date of the original purchase. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the Warranty Period shall be limited to a period of (i) one (1) year from the date of the 
original purchase for moving parts and image sensors in Axis Network Video Products (including, but not limited to, 
fans, shutters, zoom mechanics, hard disc, camera CCD and CMOS sensors, microbolomters, electrical slip ring 
contacts, pan/tilt and lens motors, DC-Iris, P-Iris and lens assemblies), (ii) three (3) months from the date of the original 
purchase for PTZ Network Dome Cameras (not including Q-Line PTZ Dome Network Cameras, AXIS 232D+ and AXIS 
233D Network Dome Cameras) which are at any time used in continuous motion applications (i.e. sequence mode and 
guard tour).  For clarification, if said products in this section (ii) are not at any time used in continuous motion 
applications, the original hardware warranty of three (3) years will apply. 
 
The original purchaser shall without undue delay notify Axis of any defect which appears in accordance with Axisô RMA 
handling, and failure to do so shall mean that the original purchaser loses the right to have the defect remedied.  A 
valid form of a bill of sale or receipt must be presented to obtain warranty service.  If a valid claim is received by Axis 
within the Warranty Period, the sole remedy of the original purchaser replacement parts, or replacement of the 
products.  Repaired or replacement hardware will be warranted for the remainder of the original Warranty Period or 
ninety (90) days, whichever is longer.  When a product or part is exchanged all hardware or part thereof that is 
replaced shall become the property of Axis. 
 
The Limited Hardware Warranty is applicable in all countries and may be enforced by contacting Axis Support, for 
more information please visit www.axis.com/support 
 
EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
The Limited Hardware Warranty does not apply (i) if the product has been subject to faulty and improper installation, 
maintenance, service, operational adjustments, repair, alteration and/or modification in any way that is not (a) covered 
in the documentation for the products or (b) carried out with Axisô prior consent in writing, (ii) to damages caused by 
failure to follow the instructions covered in the documentation for the products or other specific instructions from Axis, 
(iii) to cosmetic damages, (iv) if the products has been tampered with, (v) if the product is damaged by acts of God, 

http://www.axis.com/support


CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 17 

misuse, abuse, negligence, accident, normal wear and tear and deterioration, improper environmental conditions 
(including, but not limited to, electrical surges, water damage and heat exposure) or lack of responsible care, (vi) if the 
product has had the model or serial number altered, defaced or removed, (vii) to consumables (such as batteries) (viii) 
to products that have been purchased ñas isò and Axis, the seller or the liquidator expressly disclaim their warranty 
obligation pertaining to the products, (ix) to any non-Axis hardware product or any software (irrespective of whether it 
has been packaged and/or sold with an Axis hardware product) and/or Axis products purchased from an unauthorized 
distributor/reseller, (x) to damage that occurs in shipment or from improper storage or transportation, (xi) to damages 
by any other cause not related to defective design, workmanship and/or materials. 
 
Note: 

• If the product is to be used outdoors, or in dusty, humid, or other hostile environments, it must be suitably 
protected.  Further, camera products specifically must be protected, whether in use or not, from exposure to 
direct sunlight or halogen light which may damage the camera image sensor.  This applies to both indoor and 
outdoor use of the cameras. 

• For camera products supplied without a lens, extreme care should be used when mounting a lens on these 
products.  Damage to the product due to incorrectly mounted lenses will invalidate this Limited Hardware 
Warranty. 

• Failure to comply with any of the aforementioned requirements will invalidate this Limited Hardware Warranty. 
 
THE WARRANTY AND REMEDIES PROVIDED ABOVE ARE EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABLITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICLUAR PURPOSE.  CERTAIN JURISDICTIONS DO NOT ALLOW 
THE EXCLUSION OF IMPLIED WARRANTIES.  IF LAWS UNDER SUCH JURISDICTIONS APPLY, THEN ALL 
EXPRESS AND IMPLIED WARRANTIES ARE LIMITED TO THE WARRANTY PERIOD IDENTIFIED ABOVE.  
UNLESS PROVIDED HEREIN, ANY STATEMENTS OR REPRESENTATIONS MADE BY ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
FIRM ARE VOID.  EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THIS WRITTEN WARRANTY AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
LAW, NEITHER AXIS NOR ANY AFFILIATTES SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS, (INCLUDING LOSS OF DATA 
AND INFORMATION), INCONVENIENCE, OR DAMAG, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DIRECT, SPECIAL, 
INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, RESULTING FROM THE USE OF INABILITY TO USE THE AXIS 
PRODUCT, WHETHER RESULTING FROM BREACH OF WARRANTY OR ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY.  
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, AXISô TOTAL LIABILITY FOR ALL CLAIMS UNDER THIS WARRANTY 
SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE PAID FOR THE PRODUCT.  THESE LIMITATIONS ON POTENTIAL LIABILITES 
HAVE BEEN AN ESSENTIAL CONDITION IN SETTING THE PRODCT PRICE. 
 
APPLICABLE LAW 

• This Limited Hardware Warranty is governed by and construed under the laws of Sweden. 
• This Limited Hardware Warranty may be subject to Axisô change at any time without prior notice. 

 
Warranty Limited Hardware 3 Yr.   Rev.                                                                         Part No. 37660 
 
POE SWITCH WARRANTY 
Cisco Small Business Product Enhanced Limited Lifetime Warranty Terms 
The following are terms applicable to your hardware warranty. Your formal Warranty Statement, including the warranty 
applicable to Cisco software, appears below and in the Cisco Information Packet that accompanies your Cisco product. 
Duration of Hardware Warranty: As long as the original End User continues to own or use the Product. In the event of 
discontinuance of product manufacture, Cisco warranty support is limited to five (5) years from the announcement of 
discontinuance. 
Duration of Phone Support: One (1) year (Local Business Hours) 
Replacement, Repair or Refund Procedure for Hardware: Cisco or its service center will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to ship a replacement for next business day delivery, where available. Otherwise, commercially reasonable 
efforts will be used to ship a replacement part for delivery upon receipt of the defective product at Cisco's site. The 
replacement part will be shipped via ground shipping with shipping charges prepaid. Actual delivery times may vary 
depending on Customer location. 
See www.cisco.com/go/smallbizsupport for details about delivery availability. Cisco reserves the right to refund the 
purchase price as its exclusive warranty. 
Complete the form below and keep for ready reference. 
To Receive a Return Materials Authorization (RMA) Number: Please contact the party from whom you purchased the 
product. If you purchased the product directly from Cisco, contact your Cisco Sales and Service Representative. 
 
 
 

http://www.cisco.com/go/smallbizsupport


CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 18 

Product purchased from:  
Their telephone number:  
Product Model and Serial number:  
Maintenance Contract number:  
 
Product warranty terms and other information applicable to Cisco products are available at the following URL: www.cisco.com/go/warranty  
Consult the above website or your Cisco Sales and Service Representative for a complete listing of Cisco products and applicable warranties. 
 
 

Americas Headquarters 
Cisco Systems, Inc. 
170 West Tasman Drive 
San Jose, CA 

  
 

  
Cisco and the Cisco logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Cisco and/or its affiliates in the U.S. and other 
countries. To view a list of Cisco trademarks, go to this URL: www.cisco.com/go/trademarks. Third-party trademarks 
mentioned are the property of their respective owners. The use of the word partner does not imply a partnership 
relationship between Cisco and any other company. (1110R) 
É 1998, 2002, 2008, 2010ï2013 Cisco Systems, Inc. All rights reserved. 
 
GENERAL WARRANTY PROVISIONS 
This warranty sets forth the extent of COBANôS responsibilities regarding the PRODUCT.  Repair and replacement of 
the purchase price, at COBANôS option, is an exclusive remedy.    
THE WARRANTY IS GIVEN IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER EXPRESS WARRANTIES.  COBAN DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR 
CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  IN NO EVENT SHALL 
COBAN BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES IN EXCESS OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASE PRICE OF THE PRODUCT, FOR 
ANY LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF TIME, INCONVENIENCES, COMMERCIAL LOSS, LOST PROFITS, OR SAVINGS 
OR OTHER INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE USE OR 
INABILITY TO USE THE PRODUCT TO THE FULL EXTENT THAT MAY BE DISCLAIMED BY LAW 
 
FORCE MAJEURE 
COBAN shall not be liable for delays or failure to perform with respect to this agreement due to Force Majeure 
including (i) causes beyond the party's reasonable control and not avoidable by diligence, (ii) acts of God, epidemics, 
war, riots, or delays in transportation which are beyond the party's reasonable control and not avoidable by diligence, 
or (iii) inability for causes beyond its control and not avoidable by diligence to obtain necessary labor, materials, or 
manufacturing facilities, or delays caused by COBANs due to similar causes.  In the event of any such delay (each 
such event being beyond the party's reasonable control and not avoidable by diligence), the date of performance shall 
be extended for a period equal to the time lost by reason of the delay. 
 
CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
It is the CLIENTôs responsibility to backup the contents of all hard drives, including any data that may be stored or 
software that may have been installed on the hard drive.  It is possible that the contents of hard drives will be lost or 
that the drive may need to be reformatted in the course of service and as such COBAN will not be held liable for any 
damage to or loss of any program, data or other information stored on any media or any part of any PRODUCT 
serviced hereunder.  It is HIGHLY recommended that the CLIENT create a valid disk ñimageò after final installation is 
completed.  This image will need to be updated as changes are made to the units and kept safe by the CLIENT for 
data recovery purposes. COBAN assumes no liability or responsibility in developing a disaster recovery policy for the 
CLIENT.  The CLIENT will perform any and ALL data reconstruction, unless specifically stated in the initial contract 
between COBAN and the CLIENT.  
 
CLIENT’S REPRESENTATIVE 
At all times during the term of this warranty, at least one (1) employee of the CLIENT shall be designated to act as 
Representative.   Representative shall be responsible to react to all equipment problems, attempt troubleshoot to 
isolate the malfunction area, notify COBAN of the need for service and cooperate with COBAN to diagnose the 
problem over the telephone. 
 
All initial RMA Requests MUST be called into COBAN’s Tech Support line (281-925-0488 option 2) or entered 
via COBAN Customer Support Web Portal (http://customer.COBANTECH.com). 
Proof of a bill of sale or purchase order (which is evidence that the PRODUCT is within the 
warranty period) must be presented to obtain warranty service if requested.   

http://www.cisco.com/go/warranty
http://www.cisco.com/
http://www.cisco.com/go/trademarks
http://customer.cobantech.com/


CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 19 

RMA AND SHIPPING 
If COBAN determines that all or part of the PRODUCT requires return for repair or replacement, a Return Merchandise 
Authorization Number (RMA NUMBER) will be issued.  The CLIENT will return the PRODUCT to COBAN with the 
RMA Number clearly marked on the box.  During the first ninety (90) days of deployment, COBAN will cover the cost of 
any RMA shipment to and from COBANôs maintenance facility.  After the first ninety (90) days, the CLIENT will be 
responsible for shipping charges and to insure the product arrives at COBAN intact. COBAN will pay for return 
shipping, via Ground shipping services to return the repaired/serviced modules back to the CLIENT.  Any expedited 
shipping requests will be the responsibility of and paid for by the CLIENT. Repair times for defective modules are 
objectives, not guarantees. 
 
ADVANCE PLACEMENT / CROSS SHIP 
If advance replacement / cross ship is required and the CLIENT wishes to receive the most expedient service 
available, the CLIENT will be required to provide COBAN with a credit card authorization to bill the CLIENTôs credit 
card in the event that the CLIENT fails to return the original parts.  The credit card will only be charged for COBANôs 
list price for the part if the part has not been returned within ten (10) days. 
Type of Card: ______________________________ 
Credit Card Number: ________________________ 
Expiration Date: ____________________________ 

 
OTHER INFORMATION 
Unit Replacement 
Once a replacement component has been received, the CLIENT must relinquish the defective unit to COBAN. If the 
defective unit is not returned within ten (10) days, the CLIENT agrees to pay COBAN the cost for the replacement unit 
upon receipt of invoice. Failure to honor the invoice within ten (10) days after receipt will cause the cancellation of this 
Service Description Agreement and may result in other legal actions, including but not limited to suspending shipment 
of subsequent units and or replacement components.  
 
Parts Ownership 
All service parts removed from the CLIENTôs Supported System become the property of COBAN. The CLIENT will be 
obligated to pay at the current retail price(s) for any service parts removed from the CLIENTôs Supported System and 
retained by the CLIENT. COBAN will use new and reconditioned parts made by various manufacturers in performing 
warranty repairs.  
 
NON-WARRANTY SERVICES  
Each warranty request pertaining to any item not covered under the Manufacture Limited Warranty shall be 
invoiced to the CLIENT at the agreed upon Time and Materials rate. Currently, COBAN charges $ 125.00 per 
hour on non-warranty phone support and $ 95.00 per hour on none warranty repair.  COBAN Support 
Engineers are not authorized to service any third party hardware, software or vehicle issues.  
COBAN will charge the CLIENT a $ 95.00 service fee for any RMA units/components that are returned to COBAN as 
ñnon-warrantyò items.  Non Warranty items are defined under section titled ITEMS NOT COVERED UNDER THIS 
WARRANTY.  Non-Warranty repair work will be billed separately from this service fee. 
COBAN will charge the CLIENT a $ 95.00 service fee for any RMA units/components that are returned to COBAN as 
ñnon-operationalò that are in fact operational (ie: CPU units that have not been ghosted properly, scratched / hazy 
touch screen monitors, microphones missing parts such as: battery, internal seals, antennas, obvious misuse or 
damaged systems). 
COBAN will obtain approval/direction for any billable service before repairs are initiated (ie. devices not covered, 
repairs not covered, etc) 
 
COMPLIANCE 
FAILURE TO FOLLOW ANY OF THE ABOVE INSTRUCTIONS MAY RESULT IN DELAYS AND MAY CAUSE THE 
CLIENT TO INCUR ADDITIONAL CHARGES, OR MAY VOID WARRANTY.  
IF DURING THE REPAIR OF THE PRODUCT, THE DATA STORED ON THE HARD DRIVE ARE ALTERED, 
DELETED, OR IN ANY WAY MODIFIED, COBAN IS NOT RESPONSIBLE WHATSOEVER TO RECOVER OR 
RESTORE SAID DATA.  THE CLIENTôS PRODUCT WILL BE RETURNED TO THE CLIENT IN THE ORIGINAL 
MANUFACTURED CONFIGURATION (SUBJECT TO AVAILABILITY OF SOFTWARE).  
 
ITEMS NOT COVERED UNDER THIS WARRANTY 
This warranty does not cover periodically or consumed parts during the life of the product such as but not limited to 
batteries, cables and wires; loss or damage resulting from external causes such as damage resulting from dropping of 
the PRODUCT, collision with any object, fire, flooding, sand, dirt, windstorm, hail, earthquake or damage from 
exposure to weather conditions, misuse, abuse, damage resulting from improper use of any electrical source, power 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 20 

surges, damage occurring during transport.  
 
This warranty does not cover ancillary equipment not furnished by COBAN, which may be attached to or used in 
connection with the PRODUCT, or for operation of the PRODUCT with any ancillary equipment.  All such ancillary 
equipment is expressly excluded from this warranty.   
 
All preventive maintenance recommended by COBAN to maintain the product in operating condition is the 
responsibility of the CLIENT; loss or damage resulting from failure to provide recommended maintenance is not 
covered under this contract. 
 
• On-site service 
• Triage, helpdesk phone support 
• De-installation or re-installation of product(s) or software application(s) 
• Warranty support or service for third party systems 
• Troubleshooting of applications or application compatibility issues 
• Data migration 
• Vehicle related issues such as electrical  
• Normal and customary wear and tear 
• Damage due to connection to improper voltage supply 
• PRODUCTS that has had the serial numbers removed or made illegible.  
• Systems that are non operational due to abuse, neglect or improper usage for anything other than what the system 

was configured to do (not limited to dirt, debris, water damage or liquid of any type)   
• A PRODUCT subjected to unauthorized entry or opening of the COBAN module, monitor or forced removal of the 

MHDD and/or components.   
• A PRODUCT subjected to unauthorized PRODUCT modifications, disassemblies, or repairs (including, without 

limitation, the addition to the PRODUCT of non-COBAN supplied equipment) that adversely affect performance of 
the PRODUCT. 

• Or defects or damage from improper testing, operation, maintenance, installation alteration, modification, or 
adjustment. 

• A PRODUCT affected by virus, security breach, or other network related occurrence including but not limited to: 
installation of third party software applications, network security settings changes resulting in loss of 
communication, ability to properly use the system or configurations that deviate from the Original Master Gold 
Image.  

• A PRODUCT, which, due to illegal or unauthorized alteration of the software / firmware in the PRODUCT, does not 
function in accordance with COBAN, published specifications or with the FCC type acceptance labeling in effect for 
the PRODUCT at the time the PRODUCT was initially distributed from COBAN.  

• Scratches or other cosmetic damages to the PRODUCTôs surfaces that do not affect the operation of the 
PRODUCT. 

 
By installing and using the COBAN HARDWARE and SOFTWARE, the CLIENT agrees to be bound by the terms of 
this WARRANTY STATEMENT. 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 21 

Appendix VI – Software License 
 
GRANT OF LICENSE 
Copyright laws and international copyright treaties, as well as other intellectual property laws and treaties protect the 
COBAN SOFTWARE.  The COBAN SOFTWARE is licensed, not sold. 
This LICENSE grants CLIENT the following rights: 
• Software.  CLIENT may install and use one copy of the COBAN SOFTWARE on the PRODUCT 
• Storage/Network Use.  CLIENT may install the COBAN DVMS / Command Center(C-CUBE) software on their 

existing internal local area network. The CLIENT may not make unauthorized copies of the COBAN Mobile Start 
software without the express written consent of COBAN.  COBAN assumes no liability for software installation 
failures due to incompatible hardware, software or network security issues that are controlled by the CLIENT 
Information Technology Department. COBAN will not be responsible to install said software on the CLIENT local 
area network, unless specifically contracted to do so. Instructions shall be provided to the CLIENT to accomplish 
this task. 

• Back-up Copy.  A back-up copy of the COBAN SOFTWARE is included with the PRODUCT.  CLIENT may use 
the back-up copy solely for archival purpose. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF OTHER RIGHTS & LIMITATION 
• Limitation on Reverse Engineering.  De-compilation and Disassembly.  CLIENT may not modify, reverse 

engineer, de-compile, or disassemble the COBAN SOFTWARE or HARDWARE in whole or in part without the 
express consent from COBAN. Failure to obtain consent may void any and all warranties.  

• Separation of Components.  The COBAN SOFTWARE is licensed as a single product.  Its component parts may 
not be separated for use on more than one PRODUCT. 

• Single PRODUCT.  The COBAN SOFTWARE is licensed with the PRODUCT as a single integrated product.  The 
COBAN SOFTWARE may only be used with the PRODUCT. 

• Rental.  CLIENT may not rent or lease the COBAN SOFTWARE. 
• Software Transfer.   Software / Hardware / Licenses are NOT transferable.  
• Termination.  Without prejudice to any other rights, COBAN may terminate this LICENSE if the CLIENT fails to 

comply with the terms and conditions of this LICENSE.  In such event, the CLIENT must destroy all copies of the 
COBAN SOFTWARE and all of its component parts. 

 
PROHIBITION ON EXPORTATION  
EXCEPT FOR EXPORT TO CANADA AND AUSTRALIA, THE COBAN SOFTWARE AND ANY UNDERLYING 
TECHNOLOGY MAY NOT BE EXPORTED OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES OR TO ANY FOREIGN ENTITY OR 
ñFOREIGN PERSONò AS DEFINED BY U.S. GOVERNMENT REGULATION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
ANYONE WHO IS NOT A CITIZEN, OR LAWFUL PERMANENT RESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES.  CLIENT 
AGREES THAT BY DOWNLOADING OR USING THE COBAN SOFTWARE, THEY ARE AGREEING TO THE 
FOREGOING AND THEY ARE WARRANTING THAT THEY ARE NOT A ñFOREIGN PERSONò OR UNDER THE 
CONTROL OF OR ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE FOREIGN ENTITY. 
 
U.S. GOVERNMENT RESTRICTED RIGHTS  
The Software Product and documentation are provided with RESTRICTED RIGHTS.  Use, duplication, or disclosure by 
the United State Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subparagraph (c)(1) and (2) of the Commercial 
PRODUCT Software-Restricted Rights at 48 CFR 52.227-19, as applicable.  Manufacturer is COBAN Technologies, 
Inc., 12503 Exchange Drive, Suite 536, Stafford, Texas 77477. 
 
SOFTWARE WARRANTIES - Reserved  
The COBAN PRODUCT described in this instruction manual may include copyrighted COBAN SOFTWARE stored in 
semiconductor memory and other media.  Laws in the United States and other countries preserve certain exclusive 
rights for COBAN copyrighted SOFTWARE programs, including the exclusive right to copy or reproduce the 
copyrighted SOFTWARE program in any form.  Accordingly, any copyrighted COBAN SOFTWARE programs 
contained in the COBAN PRODUCT described in this instruction manual may not be copied or reproduced in any 
manner without the express written permission of COBAN.  Furthermore, the CLIENT shall not be deemed to grant 
either directly or by implication, estoppels or otherwise, any license under the copyrights, patents or patent applications 
for COBAN, except for the normal non-exclusive, royalty-free license to use that arises by operation of law in the sale 
of a product. 
 
END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT 
This End-User License Agreement (ñLICENSEò) is a legal agreement between the CLIENT and COBAN Technologies, 
Inc. (ñCOBANò), the manufacturer of the Fusion, EDGE, EDGE HiDef, TITAN, and ECHO Body Worn Cameras 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 22 

(ñPRODUCTò).  All COBAN software, including COBAN Mobile Start Software (ñSOFTWAREò) and third party software 
not otherwise licensed by a specific end user license agreement included with CLIENT PRODUCT, downloaded from 
COBAN websites or provided by COBAN as update / upgrades, shall be referred to as COBAN SOFTWARE.  The 
COBAN SOFTWARE includes PRODUCT software, the associated media, any printed materials, and any ñon-lineò or 
electronic documentation, as well as COBAN supplied or facilitated update / upgrades thereto.  Notwithstanding for 
foregoing, software distributed together with separate end user software license agreements (the ñThird Party EULAò), 
including but not limited to WindowsÈ operating system provided by Microsoft Corporation, shall be covered by 
respective Third Party EULAs.  CLIENT may use the COBAN SOFTWARE only in connection with the use of 
PRODUCT.  By installing, copying, downloading or otherwise using the COBAN SOFTWARE, CLIENT agrees to be 
bound by the terms of this LICENSE.   



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 23 

Appendix VII – Command™ Service Terms and Conditions 

 
CommandÊ TERMS OF USE 
 
This is an agreement (the ñAgreementò) between you 
and COBAN Technologies, Inc. (with its affiliates, 
"COBAN", "we" or "us") regarding the CommandÊ 
Service and associated software (the "Service"). 
Before using the Service, please read these Terms of 
Use, all rules and policies related to the Service. If you 
use the Service, you will be bound by the Agreement. It 
is effective on the date we provide you with 
confirmation of your purchase order or the date on 
which your purchase order is renewed, as applicable. 
 
1. THE SERVICE 
 
1.1. THE SERVICE. The Service provides storage, 
retrieval, management and access features and 
functionality for your data ("Your Files"). By using the 
Service, you are directing us to store, manage, and 
provide access to Your Files on your behalf. This is not 
a data sharing agreement. We do not continuously 
audit, inspect, or monitor Your Files. You are not 
intending to waive or diminish any privacy interests by 
your use of the CommandÊ Services. 
1.2. USING YOUR FILES WITH THE SERVICE. You 
may use the Service only to store, retrieve, manage, 
and access Your Files using the features and 
functionality we make available. You may not use the 
Service to store, transfer or distribute content of or on 
behalf of third parties, to operate your own file storage 
application or service, to operate other commercial 
service, or to resell any part of the Service. You are 
solely responsible for Your Files and for complying with 
all applicable copyright and other laws, including import 
and export control laws and regulations, and with the 
terms of any licenses or agreements to which you are 
bound. You must ensure that Your Files are free from 
any malware, viruses, Trojan horses, spyware, worms, 
or other malicious or harmful code. You may not 
disable, tamper with, or otherwise attempt to circumvent 
any billing mechanism that meters your use of the 
Service. You may not rent, lease, lend, resell, transfer, 
or sublicense the Service or any portion thereof to or for 
third parties. 
The Service and data storage are subject to usage 
limits in the quantities specified in purchase orders. 
Unless otherwise specified, (a) a quantity in purchase 
orders refers to the number of authorized end users, 
and the Service may not be accessed by more than 
that number of end users, and (b) an end user 
identification may be reassigned to a new individual 
replacing one who no longer requires ongoing use of 
the Service. You and each of your end users agree to 
adhere to this Agreement and all laws, rules, 
regulations, and policies applicable to your use of the 
Service. If you become aware of any violation of this 
Agreement by an end user, you will immediately 
terminate that end userôs access to Your Files and the 
Service. 

1.3. SHARING YOUR FILES. The Service may provide 
features that allow you or your licensed end users to 
share Your Files with others. If you share Your Files, 
anyone with access to that file may view and download 
copies of the file. You or your licensed end users may 
only share Your Files to which you or your end users 
have authorized access. You are solely responsible for 
how you share Your Files and who may access Your 
Files that you share. We shall not be liable for any 
unauthorized access to Your Files by you, your end 
users, or others, and we shall not be liable as a result 
of your sharing Your Files. 
COBAN reserves the right to restrict access to Your 
Files if usage exceeds commercially reasonable and 
appropriate levels, such as excessive usage resulting 
from distribution of Your Files through common logons 
or public forum. 
1.4. QUALIFICATION. To qualify to use the Service, 
you must submit for our review and approval the 
following: (i) the number of professional licenses 
requested, (ii) your data retention policy, (iii) your policy 
regarding Freedom of Information Act requests, and 
(iv) shift recording policy. 
1.5. END USERS. You control access by your end 
users, and you are responsible for their use of the 
Service in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 
1.6. SUPPORT. We periodically will provide updates 
on CommandÊ Service. Updates may be provided 
electronically or by other methods. We will use 
reasonable efforts to continue to support your previous 
version of software unless (i) it would pose a security 
threat or intellectual property issue, (ii) is economically 
or technically burdensome, or (iii) is needed to comply 
with the law or request of a governmental entities. 
 
2. Service Plans 
 
2.1. SERVICE PLANS; TRIAL PLANS. The Service 
offers plans with different limits and fees (each a 
"Service Plan"). We may offer trial or promotional 
Service Plans ("Trial Plans"). Trial Plans may be 
subject to additional terms as we may determine in our 
sole discretion. 
2.2. FEES. The price stated for each Service Plan 
does not include any taxes that we may charge. If you 
discontinue or terminate the Service or this 
Agreement, we will give you a prorated refund of any 
fees paid for your Service Plan based on the number 
of full months remaining in your Service Plan; 
provided, however, you will be responsible for and you 
hereby agree to pay reasonable termination fees that 
are based on the size of Your Files. We may charge 
you interest at the rate of 1.5% per month (or the 
highest rate permitted by law, if less) on all late 
payments. If a delinquent account is sent to 
collections, you are responsible for all collection and 
attorneysô fees. 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 24 

2.3. CHANGING YOUR SERVICE PLAN. If you 
upgrade your Service Plan, the upgrade will take effect 
immediately, we will charge you the applicable fee, and 
your Service Plan term may be extended, as described 
at the time you upgrade. If you downgrade your Service 
Plan, unless otherwise specified, the downgrade will 
take effect at the end of the term of your existing 
Service Plan. If you no longer have a Service Plan or 
exceed your Service Plan's storage limit, including by 
downgrading or not renewing your Service Plan, we 
may delete or restrict access to Your Files. In the event 
we delete Your Files, you understand and agree that 
such files shall be irretrievable and we shall have no 
liability to you related thereto. 
 
3. USE OF THE SERVICE 

 
3.1. USE OF YOUR ACCOUNT. You and your end 
users may only use your Service Plan in connection 
with one account. You and each of your end users 
may not share usernames and passwords with others 
or use anyone else's username and password. You 
are responsible for maintaining appropriate security 
and protection of Your Files and your end usersô 
usernames and passwords. 
3.2. USAGE RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITS. The 
Service is offered in the United States. There may be 
limits on the types of content you can store and share 
using the Service, such as file types we don't support, 
and on the number or type of devices you can use to 
access the Service. We may impose other restrictions 
on use of the Service. We do not support any full-shift 
recording policies. The Service requires you to 
periodically delete closed cases files from 
CommandÊ service. In addition, you are required to 
provide prior written notice to us if you change the 
data retention policy that you specified in the initial 
purchase period. Your charges for the Service may be 
adjusted due to this change in retention policy. 
We reserve the right to review your usage and 
evidence retention policy on a quarterly basis. In the 
event that usage differs dramatically from the initial 
purchase period, your charges for the Service may be 
adjusted. 
3.3. OUR USE OF YOUR FILES. We may use, access, 
and retain Your Files in order to provide the Service to 
you and enforce the terms of the Agreement, and you 
give us all permissions we need to do so. These 
permissions include, but are not limited to, the rights to 
copy Your Files for backup purposes, modify Your Files 
to enable access in different formats, use information 
about Your Files to organize them on your behalf, 
access Your Files to provide technical support, 
troubleshooting to prevent, find, and fix problems with 
the operation of the Service, improving features and for 
finding and protecting against threats to users. We will 
not use Your Files or derive information from it for any 
advertising or other commercial purposes without your 
consent. 
3.4. PRIVACY AND DATA LOCATION. We will not 
disclose Your Files or any information about you 

except as compelled by a court or required by any law 
or regulation. We will give you notice if any disclosure 
request is received for Your Files so you may file an 
objection with the court or administrative body. You 
agree to allow us access to certain information from 
you in order to: (a) perform troubleshooting services; 
(b) enforce our agreements or policies governing your 
use of CommandÊ Service; or (c) perform analytic and 
diagnostic evaluations of the systems. 
We will control the location of the storage of Your Files, 
and we have the right, but not the obligation, to utilize 
other methods of cloud storage for data held after the 
termination of the Service or this Agreement. 
We may transfer to, store, or process Your Files in any 
country where we or our affiliates or subcontractors 
have facilities used to provide or support the Service. 
3.5. OWNERSHIP OF YOUR FILES. Except for 
Software (defined below) we license to you, as 
between the parties, you retain all right, title, and 
interest in and to Your Files. We acquire no rights in 
Your Files, other than the right set forth in Section 3.3, 
including the right to use and reproduce Your Files 
solely as necessary to provide the Services. 
3.6. THIRD-PARTY REQUESTS. We will not disclose 
Your Files to a third party except as you direct or 
unless required by law or subpoena. Should a third 
party contact us with a demand for Your Files, we will 
attempt to redirect the third party to request that data 
directly from you. As part of this effort, you authorize us 
to provide your basic contact information to the third 
party. If we are required to disclose Your Files to a third 
party by law or subpoena, we will to the extent 
practicable notify you and provide a copy of the 
demand, unless legally prohibited from doing so. You 
are responsible for responding to requests by third 
parties regarding your use of the Service. 
 
4. SOFTWARE 
 
4.1. USE OF THE SOFTWARE. We may make 
available to you software for your use in connection 
with the Service (the "Software"). Terms contained in 
the TERMS & CONDITIONS OF SALE apply to your 
use of the Software. 
4.2. INFORMATION PROVIDED TO COBAN. The 
Service and the Software may provide us with 
information relating to your use and the performance of 
the Service and the Software, as well as information 
regarding the devices on which you download and use 
the Service and the Software. We are authorized to 
use such information in any way we deem appropriate. 
 
5. CHANGES; SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 
AND IP RIGHTS 
 
5.1. CHANGES. We may change, suspend, 
discontinue or terminate the Service or this 
Agreement, or any part of them, at any time without 
notice. If we discontinue or terminate the Service or 
this Agreement, we will give you a prorated refund of 
any fees (aside from any termination fees as set forth 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 25 

in Section 2.2) paid for your Service Plan based on the 
number of full months remaining in your Service Plan. 
Simultaneously with the termination of this Agreement, 
your limited license to use the Software set forth below 
shall immediately terminate. 
5.2. SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION. Your rights 
under the Agreement will automatically terminate 
without notice if you fail to comply with its terms. 
Additionally, we may terminate the Agreement or 
restrict, suspend or terminate your use of the Service, 
at our discretion without notice at any time, if we 
determine that (i) your use violates the Agreement, (ii) 
your use of the Service is improper, substantially 
exceeds or differs from normal use provided from 
approved recording and retention policy, statement of 
work, quotations, or other relevant documents, (iii) your 
use of the Service involves fraud or misuse of the 
Service or harms our interests or those of another user 
of the Service, (iv) your use of the Service poses 
security risks to us or the Service, (v) you are 
delinquent on your payment obligations for more than 
10 days, or (vi) You have become the subject of any 
bankruptcy, reorganization, liquidation, dissolution, or 
similar proceeding. If your Service Plan is restricted, 
suspended or terminated, you may be unable to 
access Your Files and you will not receive any refund 
of fees or any other compensation. 
We will provide you with the same post-termination 
data retrieval assistance that we make available to all 
customers. Request beyond our normal assistance to 
you downloading or transferring Your File will result in 
additional fees. 
In the instances of (a) Local customer-hosted service, 
with respect to customer-owned on-customer-premises 
systems, or (b) COBAN SmartCloud BYOC 
subscription service, since Your Files are hosted either 
on your own systems or on your own cloud storage, 
you continue to have storage of and direct access to 
Your Files as per rights set forth in Section 3.5. 
The following applies to all instances of (c) COBAN-
owned on-customer-premises systems, including but 
not limited to COBAN SmartCloudÊ Appliance or 
similar systems, if you terminate a subscription that 
includes COBAN-owned on-customer-premises 
systems, or it expires, COBAN will continue to allow 
operation of the COBAN-owned on-customer-premises 
systems for 30 days (the ñTransition Retention periodò). 
During this period, you should either extract the data or 
renew your subscription. This storage and limited 
access for extraction-only of a single copy of Your Files 
will be provided to you at no additional cost. After this 
30-day Transition Retention period, unless you contract 
for a 60-day Transition Retention Extension, COBAN 
will disable the account(s) on the COBAN-owned on-
customer-premises systems and delete Your Files, 
including any cached or backup copies. COBAN will 
then recover the COBAN-owned on-customer-
premises systems. If within those 30 days you contract 
for a 60-day Transition Retention Extension, COBAN 
will continue to allow operation of the COBAN-owned 
on-customer-premises systems to process and store 

Your Files for an additional 60 days (the ñTransition 
Extension Retention periodò) to give you additional time 
to perform a single extraction of the data or renew your 
subscription. This is a paid additional service. After this 
60-day Transition Extension Retention period, COBAN 
will disable the account(s) and delete the customer 
data, including any cached or backup copies on the 
COBAN-owned on-customer-premises systems. 
COBAN will then recover the COBAN-owned on-
customer-premises systems. During the Transition 
Retention period and the Transition Extension period, 
COBAN will provide multiple notices to forewarn you of 
the upcoming deletion of data and equipment recovery. 
The following applies to all instances of (d) COBAN 
SmartCloudÊ Storage subscription service, or (e) 
COBAN SmartCloudÊ Backup subscription service, if 
you terminate a subscription or it expires, COBAN will 
store your customer data in a limited-function account 
for 30 days (the ñExtract Retention periodò) to give you 
time to extract the data or renew your subscription. 
This storage, limited access and standard 
download/export via same network connectivity as 
used during subscription for a single extraction of Your 
Files will be provided to you at no additional cost. All 
additional costs are your responsibility. After this 30-
day Extract Retention period, unless you contract for a 
60-day Extract Extension, COBAN will disable the 
account and delete Your Files, including any cached or 
backup copies. If within those 30 days you contract for 
a 60-day Extract Extension, COBAN will continue store 
your customer data in a limited-function account for 60 
days (the ñExtract Extension Retention periodò) to give 
you additional time to perform a single extraction of the 
data or renew your subscription. This is a paid 
additional service that includes the storage, limited 
access and standard download/export via same 
network connectivity as used during subscription for a 
single extraction of Your Files. All additional costs are 
your responsibility. During this period, COBAN 
provides multiple notices, so you will be forewarned of 
the upcoming deletion of data. After this 60-day Extract 
Extension Retention period, COBAN will disable the 
account and delete the customer data, including any 
cached or backup copies. 
5.3. IP RIGHTS. We or our licensors own and reserve 
all right, title, and interest in and to the Service and 
Software. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, we 
grant you a limited, revocable, non-exclusive, non-
sublicensable, non-transferrable license to access and 
use the Service and the Software solely in accordance 
with this Agreement during its term. We own all right, 
title, and interest in and to the Service and the Software 
including without limitation all intellectual property 
rights. If you or your end users provide any suggestions 
to us for enhancements or improvements to the Service 
or the Software, we will own all right, title, and interest 
in and to the suggestions and have the right to use the 
suggestions without restriction, even if you or your end 
users have designated the suggestions as confidential. 
You irrevocably assign to us all right, title, and interest 
in and to the suggestions and agree to provide us any 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 26 

assistance we may require to document, perfect, and 
maintain our rights in the suggestions. You and your 
end users may not alter, merge, modify, translate, 
reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, adapt, work 
around technical limitations or in any other way derive 
any source code from the Service or the Software. 
 
6. GENERAL 
 
6.1. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY. THE SERVICE 
AND SOFTWARE ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" WITHOUT 
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED 
OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION 
THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE AND AGAINST INFRINGEMENT. NO 
ORAL OR WRITTEN INFORMATION OR ADVICE 
GIVEN BY COBAN OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES 
SHALL CREATE A WARRANTY. . 
6.2. AMENDMENT. We may amend the Agreement and 
the terms of use of the Service or the Software at any 
time, with our without notice at our sole discretion by 
emailing or mailing to you the revised terms and 
conditions. Your continued use of the Service or the 
Software after any amendment evidences your 
agreement to be bound by it. 
6.3. CONTACT INFORMATION; COPYRIGHT 
NOTICES. For communications concerning the 
Agreement, please write to COBAN Technologies, 
Inc., Attn: Legal Department, 11375 W. Sam Houston 
Parkway S. #800, Houston, TX 77031. 
6.4. INDEMNIFICATION. You shall indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless COBAN, its affiliates, and their
 respective employees, contractors,  
subcontractors, officers, directors, shareholders, 
attorneys, agents and representatives (collectively, the 
"Indemnified Parties"), from and against any losses, 
damages, claims or liabilities, including reasonable 
expenses and attorney's fees (collectively, "Losses") 
related to or arising out of your or your end usersô acts 
or omissions or your or your end usersô breach of any 
term of the Agreement, including, without limitation, 
your or your end usersô violation of any copyright laws, 
privacy laws, licensing agreements, and any other 
agreements you have with third parties, except that this 
right to indemnification shall not apply with respect to 
any Losses that are finally judicially determined to have 
resulted solely from the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of such Indemnified Party. YOU 
UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT YOU SHALL BE 
LIABLE TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD 
HARMLESS THE INDEMNIFIED PARTIES EVEN IN 
THE EVENT THE LOSS WAS CAUSED IN WHOLE 
OR IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE 
INDEMNIFIED PARTIES. 
6.4. DISPUTES/BINDING ARBITRATION. Any dispute 
arising out of this Agreement or the subject matter 
therein, shall be submitted to final and binding 
arbitration by three (3) independent arbitrators 
pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the 
American Arbitration Association. All arbitrators shall 

be experienced in computer technology and intellectual 
property law matters. The arbitration shall be 
conducted in Houston, Texas. Before initiating 
arbitration, the parties shall use commercially 
reasonable efforts for a period of thirty (30) days from 
written notice of a dispute to amicably resolve any 
dispute or difference arising from this Agreement. 
Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrators 
may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. 
Each party shall bear its own expenses in connection 
with preparation for the presentation of its case at the 
arbitration proceedings, and the fees and expenses of 
the arbitrator and all other expenses of the arbitration 
shall be borne equally by the parties to such arbitration. 
Nothing contained in this Section shall delay, restrict or 
hinder COBAN from seeking injunctive or other relief in 
connection with your breach of Section 5.3 to protect 
its intellectual property rights. 
6.5. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT 
SHALL COBAN OR ITôS AFFILIATES OR VENDORS 
BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, 
INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
ARISING OUT OF YOUR USE OF THE SERVICE OR 
SOFTWARE, EVEN IF COBAN, THE AFFILIATE OR 
VENDOR HAS ADVANCE NOTICE OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE 
AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF COBAN UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT IS LIMITED TO YOUR DIRECT 
DAMAGES UP TO THE AMOUNT PAID UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE SERVICE OR 
SOFTWARE GIVING RISE TO THAT LIABILITY 
DURING THE 12 MONTHS BEFORE THE LIABILITY 
AROSE. 
6.6. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Except as 
provided for in Section 6.4, there are no third-party 
beneficiaries to this Agreement. 
6.7. WAIVER. The failure of either party to enforce any 
provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a 
waiver of such provision or the right thereafter to 
enforce each and every provision. 
6.8. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party will be liable for 
any failure in performance due to causes beyond its 
reasonable control (such as fire, explosion, power 
blackout, earthquake, flood, severe storms, strike, 
embargo, labor disputes, acts of civil or military 
authority, war, terrorism (including cyber terrorism), acts 
of God, acts or omissions of Internet traffic carriers, 
actions or omissions of regulatory or governmental 
bodies (including the passage of laws or regulations or 
other acts of government that impact the delivery of 
Service). This section will not, however, apply to your 
payment obligations under this agreement. 
6.9. ASSIGNMENT. You may not assign or otherwise 
transfer your rights or obligations under this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of COBAN, and any 
attempt to do so shall be void ab initio. We may assign 
this Agreement at any time, with or without notice. 
6.10. ATTORNEYôS FEES. COBAN shall be entitled to 
recover its reasonable costs, including attorneysô fees, 
in enforcing the term and conditions of this Agreement. 



CITY OF OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT – IP Interview Room Solution and Management Services Contract & SOW 27 

6.11. IMPORT & EXPORT. Each party will comply with 
all applicable import, reimport, export, and re-export 
control laws and regulations, including the Export 
Administration Regulations, the International Traffic in 
Arms Regulations, and country-specific economic 
sanctions programs implemented by the U.S. Office of 
Foreign Assets Control. You are solely responsible for 
compliance related to the manner in which you choose 
to use the Evidence.com Services, including your 
transfer and processing of Your Files, the provision of 
Your Files to end users, and the region in which any of 
the foregoing occur. 
6.12. GOVERNING LAW. The rights and obligations of 
the parties hereunder shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Texas, without regard to its conflict of laws principles. 
Exclusive venue for any proceeding relating to this 
Agreement, the Service of the Software shall lie in 
Harris County, Texas. 
6.13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, the 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE, the quotation, 
purchase order, and proforma or invoice issued by 
COBAN to which they are attached comprise the entire 
agreement between COBAN and you and supersede 
any prior or contemporaneous negotiations or 
agreements with respect to their subject matter. You 
agree that your purchases are neither contingent on 
the delivery of any future functionality or features nor 
dependent on any oral or written public comments 
made by us regarding future functionality or features of 
the CommandÊ Service. We will not be bound by, and 
specifically object to, any term, condition or other 
provision which is different from or in addition to the 
provisions of this Agreement (whether or not it would 
materially alter this Agreement) and which is submitted 
by you in any order, receipt, acceptance, confirmation, 
correspondence or other document. No modification or 
amendment of any portion of this Agreement will be 
effective unless in writing and signed by the parties to 
this Agreement. 
 

http://evidence.com/


 

 

Warrant 546 
July 12, 2017 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Waste Management Landfill charges-6/16/17-6/30/17 Various $5,753.19 

Logicalis, Inc. Network engineering-June 2017 Various $7,056.00 

 
Caledonia Charter Township Caledonia Utility Fund payment-4/1/17-6/30/17 Water $22,190.67 

Owosso Charter Township Owosso Charter Township 2011 Water Agreement      Water $11,417.76 

William C. Brown, PC Professional services-6/13/17-7/10/17 General $8,577.92 

    

  Total $54,995.54 



Check Date Bank Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank 1 GENERAL FUND (POOLED CASH)

06/06/2017 1 128421 TIM APPLEGATE MEAL AT TACTICAL LEADERSHIP TRAINING 14.07$                

06/06/2017 1 128422 JON D CECIL NOTRE DAME ATF CONFERENCE EXPENSES 266.19$              

06/06/2017 1 128423 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC SERVICE 22,559.29$        

06/06/2017 1 128424 JUDY ELAINE CRAIG COURIER SERVICE 198.00$              

06/06/2017 1 128425 SCOTT D DAVIS MEALS AT PRACTICAL SUPERVISION TRAIN 30.00$                

06/06/2017 1 128426 BRIAN JENKINS OFD-MEAL AT TRAINING 10.00$                

06/06/2017 1 128427 MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF POLICE 2017 SUMMER CONFERENCE-KEVIN LENKART 260.00$              

06/06/2017 1 128428 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC RADIO AND INSTALLATION FOR MEDIC 5 2,985.38$          

06/06/2017 1 128429 NORTHSIDE ANIMAL HOSPITAL CAT SERVICES-PAID FOR BY DONATIONS 138.47$              

06/06/2017 1 128430 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER TRAILER FEES-137 LOTS 342.50$              

06/06/2017 1 128431 SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS APRIL 2017-CELL PHONE SERVICE/EQUIPMENT 1,177.42$          

06/06/2017 1 128432 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM 4,344.56$          

06/06/2017 1 128433 STATE OF MICHIGAN SUBSTITUTE PLATES (3) 39.00$                

06/06/2017 1 128434 ROBERT J TEICH JR COUNCIL PAY 110.00$              

06/06/2017 1 128435 ADAM TERRY MEAL DURING TACTICAL SUPERVISION TRAINING 14.09$                

06/06/2017 1 128436 US BANCORP GOVERNMENT LEASING AND FINANCE INC AMR SYSTEM PAYMENT 150,919.06$      

06/07/2017 1 2212(A) MICHAEL LEVERE ASH SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER PAYMENT-67/HRS 1,226.10$          

06/07/2017 1 2213(A) LOREEN F BAILEY REIMBURSEMENT FOR CAT SERVICES-PAID BY DONATIONS 359.00$              

06/07/2017 1 2214(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. BATTERY/PRINTER/SCANNER 637.48$              

06/07/2017 1 2215(A) CENTRON DATA SERVICES, INC. 2017 SUMMER TAX BILLS-POSTAGE ADVANCE 2,414.00$          

06/07/2017 1 2216(A) J & H OIL COMPANY FUEL-PE 5/31/17 4,490.33$          

06/07/2017 1 2217(A) MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION ANNUAL WEB HOSTING 5/1/17-4/30/18 950.00$              

06/07/2017 1 2218(A) MICHAEL GENE WHEELER SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-63.5 HRS 1,162.05$          

06/08/2017 1 128437 THE ACCUMED GROUP APRIL 2017-AMBULANCE BILLING SERVICES 3,603.68$          

06/08/2017 1 128438 ADVANCED DRAINAGE SYSTEMS INC WATER-PARTS FOR OLIVER ST METER PITS 582.19$              

06/08/2017 1 128439 H K ALLEN PAPER CO SUPPLIES 291.00$              

06/08/2017 1 128440 THE ARGUS PRESS PRINTING OF LEGAL NOTICES ETC 283.75$              

06/08/2017 1 128441 CITY OF CORUNNA ANNUAL MAINTENANCE SHIAWASSEE  RIVER TRAIL 6,873.23$          

06/08/2017 1 128442 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC SERVICE 15,666.79$        

06/08/2017 1 128443 D & D TRUCK & TRAILER PARTS PARTS 863.90$              

06/08/2017 1 128444 H20 COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC INSPECTION SERVICES FOR CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAM 698.75$              

06/08/2017 1 128445 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES TOOLS/SUPPLIES 193.17$              

06/08/2017 1 128446 EARL KRUPP CRANE SERVICE FOR FLEX RAKE INSTALL 1,210.00$          

06/08/2017 1 128447 LLOYD MILLER & SONS, INC FLEET-PARTS FOR #521 & #444 814.72$              

06/08/2017 1 128448 MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION EXCAVATION/TRENCH SAFETY-G GILLETT & P OBERLIN 360.00$              

06/08/2017 1 128449 MISDU PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 1,440.32$          

06/08/2017 1 128450 OWOSSO BOLT & BRASS CO PARTS 365.36$              

06/08/2017 1 128451 POLICE OFFICERS LABOR COUNCIL PAYROLL DEDUCTION-UNION DUES 854.25$              

06/08/2017 1 128452 PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES LLC PAYROLL DEDUCTION-GARNISHMENT 192.58$              

06/08/2017 1 128453 RAILROAD MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC ANNUAL LEASE PAYMENT 848.62$              

06/08/2017 1 128454 RCL CONSTRUCTION CO INC WWTP-PRIMARY CLARIFIER PROJECT DEMO 22,661.10$        

06/08/2017 1 128455 S & K FARM & YARD WTP-DECK PULLEYS 80.00$                

06/08/2017 1 128456 STAPLES ADVANTAGE SUPPLIES 62.60$                

06/08/2017 1 128457 STATE OF MICHIGAN-MDNRE WTP-LAB TESTING 26.00$                

06/08/2017 1 128458 TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY WWTP-SUPPLIES 59.97$                

06/08/2017 1 128459 VALLEY LUMBER MATERIALS/SUPPLIES 439.12$              

06/08/2017 1 128460 WIN'S ELECTRICAL SUPPLY OF OWOSSO MATERIALS/SUPPLIES 1,050.69$          

06/08/2017 1 2219(A) BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY FLEET-PARTS FOR SWEEPER #255 940.44$              

06/08/2017 1 2220(A) HEATHER DAWN BROOKS MAGNETIC SIGNS FOR VEHICLES WORKING ON AMR PROJECT 500.00$              

                                                 CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF OWOSSO                                                 

                                              CHECK DATE FROM 06/01/2017 - 06/30/2017                                              

1



06/08/2017 1 2221(A) C D W GOVERNMENT INC FILE SERVER FOR AMR PROGRAM 6,300.97$          

06/08/2017 1 2222(A) CAPITAL CONSULTANTS WWTP-ENGINEERING SERVICES 10,023.06$        

06/08/2017 1 2223(A) D & G EQUIPMENT INC PARTS 648.89$              

06/08/2017 1 2224(A) DORNBOS SIGN INC SIGNS/INVENTORY 938.12$              

06/08/2017 1 2225(A) EJ USA INC N CHIPMAN WATER MAIN/SUPPLIES 387.10$              

06/08/2017 1 2226(A) ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY N CHIPMAN ST WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 4,071.17$          

06/08/2017 1 2227(A) FASTENAL COMPANY PARTS 384.12$              

06/08/2017 1 2228(A) FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC N CHIPMAN WATER MAIN 1,655.30$          

06/08/2017 1 2229(A) GILBERT'S DO IT BEST HARDWARE & APPLIANCE PARTS/SUPPLIES 367.95$              

06/08/2017 1 2230(A) GRAYMONT CAPITAL INC WTP-BULK PEBBLE QUICKLIME-46.67/TONS 6,137.11$          

06/08/2017 1 2231(A) HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS LLC WTP-PARTS 763.52$              

06/08/2017 1 2232(A) HODGE GLASS SERVICE INC WWTP-PLEXI GLASS 42.99$                

06/08/2017 1 2233(A) J & B MEDICAL SUPPLY INC OFD-AMBULANCE MEDICAL SUPPLIES 957.20$              

06/08/2017 1 2234(A) JACK DOHENY SUPPLIES INC FLEET-PARTS FOR VACTOR 508.77$              

06/08/2017 1 2235(A) JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC WTP-SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 3,255.88$          

06/08/2017 1 2236(A) LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. WORK ON CHAIRMAN LIGHTS 861.38$              

06/08/2017 1 2237(A) MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO WWTP-TENSIONER AND ACCESSORIES 494.99$              

06/08/2017 1 2238(A) MICHIGAN PAVING & MATERIALS CO STREETS-EMULSION FOR DURA PATCHER 387.35$              

06/08/2017 1 2239(A) 1ST CHOICE AUTO PARTS INC PARTS 569.61$              

06/08/2017 1 2240(A) O'REILLY AUTO PARTS WTP-OIL 13.98$                

06/08/2017 1 2241(A) ORCHARD HILTZ & MCCLIMENT INC CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 37,173.25$        

06/08/2017 1 2242(A) OSBURN ASSOCIATES INC STOP SIGNS  AND ALL WAY SIGNS 1,309.02$          

06/08/2017 1 2243(A) PATRIOT DIAMOND INC. WATER-BLADES 290.00$              

06/08/2017 1 2244(A) POLYDYNE INC AF 4500 POLYMER 2,205.00$          

06/08/2017 1 2245(A) REEVES WHEEL ALIGNMENT, INC VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/REPAIRS 2,547.61$          

06/08/2017 1 2246(A) THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. WTP-PAINT 193.56$              

06/08/2017 1 2247(A) STEPP MANUFACTURING CO INC FLEET-PARTS FOR CRACK SEALING MACHINE 1,711.65$          

06/14/2017 1 128461 RHJ PROPERTY LLC UB refund for account: 3153070006 37.56$                

06/14/2017 1 128462 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC SERVICE 14,134.69$        

06/14/2017 1 128463 VOID -$                    

Void Reason: Created From Check Run Process

06/14/2017 1 128464 CRAWFORD CONTRACTING INC CONSTRUCTION OF ROAD AND INSTALLATION OF NEW WATER MAIN 482,638.47$      

06/14/2017 1 128465 EMPCO INC WWTP-TECHNICIAN EXAMS 252.00$              

06/14/2017 1 128466 FISHER SCIENTIFIC CO. WWTP-LAB SUPPLIES 321.50$              

06/14/2017 1 128467 MATTHEW S FRAY REIMBURSEMENT OF MEAL WHILE AT TRAINING 20.00$                

06/14/2017 1 128468 JOSEPH RAUL IBARRA JR CURWOOD SECURITY-27 HOURS 405.00$              

06/14/2017 1 128469 KENT COUNTY OPD-EVIDENCE DESTRUCTION 90.00$                

06/14/2017 1 128470 MICHIGAN CO INC FLEET-RAGS 243.80$              

06/14/2017 1 128471 JAMES RAYMOND MOREL CURWOOD SECURITY-21.5 HOURS 322.50$              

06/14/2017 1 128472 OFFICE DEPOT SUPPLIES 128.88$              

06/14/2017 1 128473 SHEAR COMFORT LTD OPD-SEAT COVER 233.60$              

06/14/2017 1 128474 SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS MAY 2017-CELL PHONE SERVICE AND EQUIPMENT 1,181.55$          

06/14/2017 1 128475 STAPLES ADVANTAGE SUPPLIES 98.69$                

06/14/2017 1 128476 VERIZON WIRELESS PUBLIC SAFETY-MODEM FEES-4/11/17-5/10/17 2,231.16$          

06/14/2017 1 128477 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF MICHIGAN INC LANDFILL DISPOSAL CHARGES-5/1/17-5/15/17 4,821.36$          

06/14/2017 1 128478 WE PRINT EVERYTHING INC ENGINEERING-SCAN AND COPY 10.00$                

06/14/2017 1 2248(A) MICHAEL LEVERE ASH OPD-SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-27/HRS 494.10$              

06/14/2017 1 2249(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. HP PROLIANT DL360 SERVER 5,153.49$          

06/14/2017 1 2250(A) CARRIER & GABLE, INC. STREETS-PARTS AND POSTS 576.90$              

06/14/2017 1 2251(A) DALTON ELEVATOR LLC CYLINDER RENTAL/SUPPLIES 479.41$              

06/14/2017 1 2252(A) EJ USA INC N CHIPMAN ST WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 6,055.00$          

06/14/2017 1 2253(A) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT CONCEPTS INC JUNE 2017-FSA ADMIN FEE 100.00$              

06/14/2017 1 2254(A) J & B MEDICAL SUPPLY INC OFD-AMBULANCE MEDICAL SUPPLIES 989.68$              

06/14/2017 1 2255(A) J & H OIL COMPANY FLEET-REC GAS 351.50$              

06/14/2017 1 2256(A) LANSING UNIFORM CO. OFD-UNIFORMS AND BADGE FOR COLLIN DEMANK 234.80$              

2



06/14/2017 1 2257(A) MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE CENTER NEW HIRE DRUG SCREEN 250.00$              

06/14/2017 1 2258(A) OSBURN ASSOCIATES INC ROAD CLOSED SIGNS 131.00$              

06/14/2017 1 2259(A) SAFEBUILT MICHIGAN LLC APRIL 2017-BUILDING DEPARTMENT SERVICES 8,740.00$          

06/14/2017 1 2260(A) BRYAN GLEN THOMAS ELECTRICAL INSPECTIONS/PLAN REVIEW 700.00$              

06/14/2017 1 2261(A) MICHAEL GENE WHEELER OPD-SCHOOL LIAISON OFFICER-27/HRS 494.10$              

06/22/2017 1 128479 AFLAC PAYROLL DEDUCTION-AFLAC PREMIUMS 531.68$              

06/22/2017 1 128480 ALL ABOUT ANIMALS SPAY/NEUTER/MEDICAL FEES-PAID BY DONATIONS 384.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128481 H K ALLEN PAPER CO OFD-SUPPLIES 277.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128482 BARTZ EXCAVATING BD Bond Refund 100.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128483 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC PORTABLE PRE-HOSPITAL MONITOR/DEFIBRILLATOR 22,540.27$        

06/22/2017 1 128484 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC SERVICE 25,032.52$        

06/22/2017 1 128485 CORDIER EXCAVATING BD Bond Refund 300.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128486 CORUNNA MILLS FEED LLC GRASS SEED 200.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128487 AMBER M CURRY MEAL REIMBURSEMENT-EMERGENCY VEHICLE OPERATION TRAINING 15.00$                

06/22/2017 1 128488 SCOTT D DAVIS MEAL REIMBURSEMENT- EMERGENCY VEHICLE OPERATIONS TRAINING ME 15.00$                

06/22/2017 1 128489 DANE A DEISLER ELECTRICAL INSPECTIONS (6) 210.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128490 DELL MARKETING LP OPTIPLEX/MONITOR AND ACCESSORIES/DELL LATITUDE 1,737.00$          

06/22/2017 1 128491 CHRISTOPHER EVELETH COUNCIL PAY AND MAYORIAL STIPEND 260.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128492 FERTILIZER DEALER SUPPLY FLEET-PUMP FOR #304 143.62$              

06/22/2017 1 128493 FIRST DUE FIRE SUPPLY OFD-HELMETS (3) AND FIRE HOSES 2,493.27$          

06/22/2017 1 128494 ELAINE GREENWAY COUNCIL PAY 140.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128495 J & M TREE SERVICE 2017 GRASS MOWING PROGRAM 1,548.00$          

06/22/2017 1 128496 JAY'S SEPTIC TANK SERVICE PORTABLE TOILET RENTALS 865.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128497 KAR LABORATORIES INC WASTEWATER ANALYSES 195.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128498 LORD J KNIGHT REIMBURSMENT OF TAX WITHHELD IN ERROR 1,040.32$          

06/22/2017 1 128499 LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS REGIONAL OPD-SPRING 2017 MEMBERSHIP/TRAINING ASSEMENT 1,521.90$          

06/22/2017 1 128500 DANIEL A. LAW COUNCIL PAY 150.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128501 MICHAEL'S PLUMBING BD Bond Refund 50.00$                

06/22/2017 1 128502 MISDU PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 1,480.45$          

06/22/2017 1 128503 MR ROOTER PLUMBING BD Bond Refund 50.00$                

06/22/2017 1 128504 OFFICE DEPOT PUBLIC SAFETY-SUPPLIES 73.20$                

06/22/2017 1 128505 OFFICESUPPLY.COM WTP-KIM WIPES 77.35$                

06/22/2017 1 128506 SUSAN J. OSIKA COUNCIL PAY 150.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128507 OWOSSO PUBLIC SCHOOLS VILLA PILOT SCHOOL VOTE 1,074.08$          

06/22/2017 1 128508 PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOCIATES LLC PAYROLL DEDUCTION-GARNISHMENT 192.58$              

06/22/2017 1 128509 SEIFERT CONCRETE RETAINAGE-2016 SIDEWALK PROGRAM 1,165.00$          

06/22/2017 1 128510 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER VILLA PILOT 2,823.23$          

06/22/2017 1 128511 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER DELINQUENT PROPERTY TAXES-050-470-035-02 -$                    

Void Reason: WRONG AMOUNT-REISSUED #128528

06/22/2017 1 128512 SHIAWASSEE DISTRICT LIBRARY VILLA PILOT TAX DISBURSEMENT 446.28$              

06/22/2017 1 128513 SHIAWASSEE FAMILY YMCA PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS-MEMBERSHIPS 219.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128514 SHIAWASSEE REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT VILLA PILOT 1,397.73$          

06/22/2017 1 128515 SHIAWASSEE UNITED WAY PAYROLL DEDUCTION-EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 120.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128516 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM 4,332.15$          

06/22/2017 1 128517 STATE OF MICHIGAN PILOT-MSHDA ANNUAL RETURN 11,603.54$        

06/22/2017 1 128518 STATE OF MICHIGAN TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE-2/16/17-3/30/17 1,182.26$          

06/22/2017 1 128519 STATE OF MICHIGAN WITHHOLDING TAX 16,361.55$        

06/22/2017 1 128520 STATE OF MICHIGAN SEX OFFENDER REGISTRATION FEES 60.00$                

06/22/2017 1 128521 ROBERT J TEICH JR COUNCIL PAY 120.00$              

06/22/2017 1 128522 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE SHIPPING FEES 15.72$                

06/22/2017 1 128523 VERIZON WIRELESS MODEM FEES FOR AMR SYSTEM-6/5/17-6/10/17 33.46$                

06/22/2017 1 2262(A) ACLARA TECHNOLOGIES LLC AMR SYSTEM 51,690.76$        

06/22/2017 1 2263(A) BODMAN LLP EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 2,117.50$          

06/22/2017 1 2264(A) WILLIAM C BROWN, P C PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 10,799.37$        

06/22/2017 1 2265(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. PROJECTOR AND CEILING MOUNT 952.76$              

3



06/22/2017 1 2266(A) FASTENAL COMPANY PARTS 371.91$              

06/22/2017 1 2267(A) FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING INC ENGINEERING DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 13,985.00$        

06/22/2017 1 2268(A) INTERSTATE BILLING SERVICE INC FLEET-SERVICE ON PAVEMENT BREAKER #453 267.03$              

06/22/2017 1 2269(A) LOGICALIS INC MAY 2017-NETWORK ENGINEERING 7,056.00$          

06/22/2017 1 2270(A) MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND FY 17/18 CONTRIBUTIONS-1ST INSTALLMENT 19,162.00$        

06/22/2017 1 2271(A) REPUBLIC SERVICES #237 JUNE 2017-REFUSE SERVICE 490.26$              

06/22/2017 1 2272(A) SAFEBUILT MICHIGAN LLC MAY 2017-BUILDING DEPARTMENT SERVICES 9,846.67$          

06/22/2017 1 2273(A) SPICER GROUP, INC. ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR OLIVER ST 54,489.63$        

06/22/2017 1 2274(A) UNIQUE PAVING MATERIALS CORP COLD PATCH 4,938.48$          

06/23/2017 1 2275(A) LOREEN F BAILEY COUNCIL PAY 120.00$              

06/23/2017 1 2276(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. MS OFFICE LICENSE (2) 718.00$              

06/23/2017 1 2277(A) BURTON D FOX COUNCIL PAY 120.00$              

06/23/2017 1 2278(A) GOYETTE MECHANICAL PUBLIC SAFETY- BOILER MAINTENANCE 141.50$              

06/23/2017 1 2279(A) HALLIGAN ELECTRIC INC PRIMARY CLARIFIER SCREENING PROJECT 21,690.00$        

06/23/2017 1 2280(A) J & H OIL COMPANY FUEL PE 6/15/17 4,561.10$          

06/23/2017 1 2281(A) MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION ADMIN SUPPORT FEE-6/1/17-3/31/18 350.00$              

06/23/2017 1 2282(A) OFFICE SOURCE ASSESSING-ADDING MACHINE 144.19$              

06/23/2017 1 2283(A) RUBOB'S INC MAY 2017-PUBLIC SAFETY-DRY CLEANING 611.72$              

06/26/2017 1 128524 CONSUMERS ENERGY UTILITY POLE AND INSTALLATION 969.90$              

06/26/2017 1 128525 MCLAREN HEALTH CARE CORP WATER/SEWER REFUND 155.38$              

06/26/2017 1 128526 POSTMASTER POSTAGE FOR AV APPLICATIONS 116.65$              

06/26/2017 1 128527 SCHOOLEY, PEGGY WATER/SEWER REFUND 60.80$                

06/26/2017 1 128528 SHIAWASSEE COUNTY TREASURER N WATER ST TAXES 6.81$                  

06/26/2017 1 128529 USPS 306 & HOSPITALITY ASSET ADVISORS REFUND 1,073.22$          

06/30/2017 1 128530 H K ALLEN PAPER CO SUPPLIES 397.25$              

06/30/2017 1 128531 SMITH JOHN UB refund for account: 1898000003 26.09$                

06/30/2017 1 128532 HURRELL RICHARD UB refund for account: 1534400006 55.02$                

06/30/2017 1 128533 SWEET NICOLE UB refund for account: 2241690004 95.10$                

06/30/2017 1 128534 WHALEN KAREN UB refund for account: 4238200003 14.07$                

06/30/2017 1 128535 ROGERS JOHN UB refund for account: 2282190021 11.40$                

06/30/2017 1 128536 SOPKO ANGELA UB refund for account: 5794740002 54.49$                

06/30/2017 1 128537 ATKINS DEBORAH UB refund for account: 5569070011 30.20$                

06/30/2017 1 128538 BUTCHER, BARBARA REISSUED CHECK #125209 66.13$                

06/30/2017 1 128539 CAPITAL CONSULTANTS WWTP-ENG SERVICES-REPLACEMENT OF PRIMARY CLARIFIER 2,000.00$          

06/30/2017 1 128540 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS/ELECTRIC SERVICE 27,885.91$        

06/30/2017 1 128541 DADANT AND SONS ALBION DPW-HAT/VAIL/GLOVES FOR BEE REMOVAL 103.39$              

06/30/2017 1 128542 HUNTINGTON COMMUNITY DEV CORP BROWNFIELD #12-ELIGIBLE DEVELOPER EXPENSES 68,195.03$        

06/30/2017 1 128543 J & M TREE SERVICE 2017 GRASS MOWING PROGRAM 3,006.00$          

06/30/2017 1 128544 OWOSSO POOLS LLC PARKS-SPLASH PAD REPAIRS 839.23$              

06/30/2017 1 128545 RCL CONSTRUCTION CO INC WWTP-PRIMARY CLARIFIER PROJECT 98,219.02$        

06/30/2017 1 128546 STAPLES ADVANTAGE SUPPLIES 398.02$              

06/30/2017 1 128547 STATE OF MICHIGAN-UNCLAIMED PROPERTY 2017 ANNUAL REPORT OF UNCLAIMED PROPERTITY 259.71$              

06/30/2017 1 128548 TIAL PRODUCTS INC BROWNFIELD #3-ELIGIBLE DEVELOPER EXPENSES 1,147.42$          

06/30/2017 1 128549 TRECHA ENTERPRISES DPHU, LLC OBRA DIST #11-ELIGIBLE DEVELOPER EXPENSES 9,703.33$          

06/30/2017 1 128550 VERIZON WIRELESS PUBLIC SAFETY-MAY 11-JUNE 10, 2017-MODEM FEES 667.77$              

06/30/2017 1 2284(A) ADVANCED TECHNICAL SOLUTIONS WWTP-PARTS 546.59$              

06/30/2017 1 2285(A) C D W GOVERNMENT, INC. IT-SUPPLIES 248.00$              

06/30/2017 1 2286(A) CAPITAL CONSULTANTS WWTP-DEVELOPMENT OF AN ASSET MGT PROGRAM 17,349.50$        

06/30/2017 1 2287(A) D & G EQUIPMENT INC PARTS 161.72$              

06/30/2017 1 2288(A) ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY COMPOUND METERS FOR AMR PROJECT 51,230.00$        

06/30/2017 1 2289(A) HYDROTEX INC FLEET-LUBES 915.10$              

06/30/2017 1 2290(A) JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC WWTP-SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 3,253.00$          

06/30/2017 1 2291(A) KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS INC WWTP-SUPPLY OF FERRIC CHLORIDE 3,774.35$          

06/30/2017 1 2292(A) LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. BALL PARKS-ELECTRICAL WORK 275.00$              

06/30/2017 1 2293(A) MICHIGAN PAVING & MATERIALS CO STREETS-AMS SEAL-211.5/GAL 851.66$              

4



06/30/2017 1 2294(A) NCL OF WISCONSIN INC WWTP-LAB SUPPLIES 83.04$                

06/30/2017 1 2295(A) OFFICE SOURCE ECONOMIC DEV-LABEL PRINTER AND LABELS 86.56$                

06/30/2017 1 2296(A) ORCHARD HILTZ & MCCLIMENT INC ENGINEERING SERVICES  51,480.25$        

06/30/2017 1 2297(A) S L H METALS INC WWTP-ALUMINUM STOP GATE FABRICATION 2,500.00$          

06/30/2017 1 2298(A) SAFEWAY TRANSPORT INC CLEANING OF  SANITARY SEWER PIPES 6,593.50$          

1 TOTALS:

(2 Checks Voided)

Total of 215 Disbursements: 1,533,986.16$   

Bank 10 OWOSSO HISTORICAL FUND

06/09/2017 10 4969 AMERICAN SPEEDY PRINTING CENTERS POST CARDS (1500) 202.00$              

06/09/2017 10 4970 ROBERT V DORAN-BROCKWAY REIMBURSEMENT 41.90$                

06/09/2017 10 4971 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ADVERTISING FOR OWOSSO OPEN STREETS 100.00$              

06/09/2017 10 4972 GILBERT'S DO IT BEST HARDWARE & APPLIANCE HANGING STRIPS 167.39$              

06/09/2017 10 4973 LIS ART CONSERVATION & RESTORATION RESTORATION OF BEAR FISHING AMONGST LILY 13,450.00$        

06/09/2017 10 4974 LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. GOULD HOUSE REPAIR 50.00$                

06/09/2017 10 4975 SHATTUCK SPECIALTY ADVERTISING MUGS (48) 740.35$              

06/09/2017 10 4976 STAPLES ADVANTAGE SUPPLIES 32.68$                

06/09/2017 10 4977 SUNNYSIDE FLORIST FLOWERS 100.00$              

06/23/2017 10 4978 MARK D AGNEW SIGN PRINT MOUNTED ON FOAMCORE 1,985.00$          

06/23/2017 10 4979 CONSUMERS ENERGY 515 N WASHINGTON ST #C 350.97$              

06/23/2017 10 4980 DAYSTARR COMMUNICATIONS JULY 2017-INTERNET AND PHONE SERVICE FOR 80.47$                

06/23/2017 10 4981 HANKERD SPORTSWEAR POLO SHIRTS (5) 212.00$              

06/23/2017 10 4982 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS (30) 250.12$              

06/23/2017 10 4983 SHATTUCK SPECIALTY ADVERTISING NAME BADGES (3) 36.26$                

06/29/2017 10 4984 DAYSTARR COMMUNICATIONS GOULD HOUSE APRIL/MAY/JUNE/JULY 2017 INT 200.00$              

06/29/2017 10 4985 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES CASTLE-BOOKS (58) 421.48$              

06/29/2017 10 4986 OUTDOORS REAL ESTATE INC GOULD HOUSE LAWN CARE 152.00$              

10 TOTALS:

Total of 18 Disbursements: 18,572.62$        

Bank 2 TRUST & AGENCY

06/06/2017 2 6604 CITY OF OWOSSO RELEIVE LIABLITIES/CLOSE OUT BALANCE 59,671.05$        

2 TOTALS:

Total of 1 Disbursements: 59,671.05$        

REPORT TOTALS:

(2 Checks Voided)

Total of 234 Disbursements: 1,612,229.83$   

5



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 

 
    
 
DATE: July 13, 2017 
 
TO:  City Council 
  
FROM: City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to purchasing ordinance concerning sale of art and other antique items 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Add to (1) a sentence which will then read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-348. - Sale of surplus material. 
  
 (1) A department head having charge of any surplus, obsolete or unused supplies, materials or 
equipment, which may include vehicles, may request that the property be disposed of according to the 
provision of this section.  City council authorization shall be required for the disposal or sale of any 
work of art, piece of furniture, decorative object, vehicle or the like, which is 70 years or older. 
 

 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO MODIFY CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, 
CONCERNING PURCHASING, CONTRACTS AND SALES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances contains provisions pertaining to purchasing, 
contracts and sales; and 
  
WHEREAS, the sections of the ordinance are unclear and oftentimes obsolete so that the entire 
ordinance should be repealed and replaced; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.  REPEAL.  That Division 3, Purchases, contracts and sales, (Sec. 2-314 through Sec. 2-348) 
of the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances is hereby repealed in its entirety. 
 
Section 2.  REPLACEMENT.  That the new Division 3, Purchases, contracts and sales, (Sec. 2-314 
through Sec. 2-348) of the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances shall read as follows: 
 
DIVISION 3. - PURCHASES, CONTRACTS AND SALES 
 
Sec. 2-341. - Purchasing agent. 
 
The city manager shall act as purchasing agent of the city, unless he or she shall designate another 
officer or employee of the city to act as purchasing agent.  Any such designation, shall be in writing filed 
with the clerk.  In the event of such designation every purchase order in excess of two thousand dollars 
($2,000.00) shall be approved by the manager before being issued. 
          
Sec. 2-342. - Rules. 
 
The city manager shall adopt any necessary rules respecting requisitions and purchase orders. 
 
Sec. 2-343. - Purchases or contracts $2,000.00 to $10,000.00. 
 
Purchases of services, supplies, materials or equipment, the cost of which is equal to or greater than two 
thousand dollars ($2,000.00) but not more than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) may be made in the open 
market but such purchases shall, where practicable, be based on at least three (3) competitive bids and 
shall be awarded to the lowest qualified bidder.  The purchasing agent may solicit bids verbally, in writing, 
or through other means. A record shall be kept of all open market orders and the bids submitted thereon, 
which records shall be available for public inspection.  Any or all bids may be rejected.  Purchases made 
pursuant to this section may be made without prior approval of the council. 
 
Sec. 2-344. - Purchases or contracts over $10,000.00. 
 
Any expenditure for services, supplies, materials or equipment obligating the city, where the amount of 
the city's obligation is in excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), shall be governed by the provisions 
of this section, except as provided in section 2-345. 
 
 (1) Such expenditure shall be made the subject of a written contract.  A purchase order shall be a 

sufficient written contract only in cases where the expenditure is in the usual and ordinary course 
of the city's affairs and in no case shall it be sufficient for the construction of public works or the 
contracting for receipt of supplies or services over any period of time in excess of one (1) year or 
where the quality of the goods or materials or the scope of the services bargained for is not 
wholly standardized. 



 (2) Notice inviting sealed competitive bids shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the city at least five (5) days before the final date for submitting bids thereon.  Such notice shall 
give briefly the specifications of the services, supplies, materials or equipment or other matter to 
be contracted for and shall state the amount of security to be given with the bid and the amount of 
bond or other security to be given with the contract.  The notice shall state the time limit, the place 
of filing and the time of opening bids and shall also state that the right is reserved to reject any or 
all bids.  Any other conditions of award of the contract shall also be stated in general terms. 

 
 (3) The purchasing agent shall also solicit bids from a reasonable number of such qualified 

prospective bidders as are known to him/her by sending each a copy of the notice requesting bids 
and notice thereof shall be posted on the cityôs website. 

 
 (4) Unless prescribed by the council, the purchasing agent shall prescribe the amount of any security 

to be deposited with any bid, which deposit shall be in cash, certified or cashier's check or bond 
written by a surety company authorized to do business in the state.  The amount of such security 
shall be expressed as a percentage of the bid submitted.  Unless fixed by the council, the 
purchasing agent shall fix the amount of the performance bond and for construction contracts, the 
amount of the labor and material bond to be required of the successful bidders. 

 
 (5) Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place designated in the notice requesting bids in 

the presence of the city clerk and at least one (1) other city official or employee, preferably the 
head of the department most closely concerned with the subject of the contract.  The bids shall 
thereupon be carefully examined, tabulated and reported to the council with the recommendation 
of the purchasing agent at the next council meeting.  After tabulation, all bids may be inspected 
by the competing bidders.  In lieu of the procedure for opening bids herein specified, the council 
may direct that bids be opened at a council meeting. 

 
 (6) When such bids are submitted to the council, the contract to be executed, in a form approved by 

the city attorney, shall also be submitted.   If the council finds any of the bids satisfactory, it shall 
award the contract to the lowest qualified bidder and shall authorize the execution of the contract.   
Upon execution of the contract, the successful bidder shall file any required bonds, which shall be 
approved by the city attorney as to form.  Such award may be by resolution or ordinance.  The 
council shall have the right to reject any or all bids, to waive irregularities in bidding and to accept 
bids which do not conform in every respect to the bidding requirements. 

 
 (7) For projects exceeding $50,000.  At the time the contract is executed, the contractor shall file a 

bond to the city executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the state, conditioned 
upon the performance of said contract, and further conditioned to pay all laborers, mechanics, 
subcontractors and material suppliers as well as all just debts, dues and demands incurred in the 
performance of such work.  The contractor shall also file evidence of public liability insurance and 
workers compensation in an amount satisfactory to the city attorney, and agree to hold the city 
harmless from loss or damage caused to any person or property by reason of the contractor's 
negligence. 

 
 (8) All bids and deposits of certified or cashier's checks may be retained until the contract is awarded 

and signed.  If any successful bidder fails or refuses to enter into the contract awarded to him or 
her within ten (10) days after the same has been awarded, or file any bond required within the 
same time, the deposit accompanying his or her bid shall be forfeited to the city, and the council 
may, in its discretion, award the contract to the next lowest qualified bidder or the contract may be 
readvertised. 

 
  



3 

Sec. 2-345- Cooperative purchasing authorized. 
 
The city may participate in, sponsor, conduct, or administer cooperative purchasing agreements for the 
procurement of any supplies, services or construction with one or more other governmental bodies.  Such 
cooperative purchasing may include, but is not limited to, joint or multi-party contracts of a governmental 
body or opened state and federal contracts which are made available to local governments.  The city may 
also use the pre-existing bid of any other governmental body or public procurement unit for the 
procurement of any supplies, services, or construction, provided that such bid was derived through a 
competitive bidding process.  In addition, the city may utilize bids or proposals obtained by a nonprofit 
entity that expressly solicits bids and proposals for governmental agencies, provided that such bids were 
derived through a competitive bidding process. 
 
Sec. 2-346. - Exceptions to competitive bidding. 
 
Subject to the approval of the council, competitive bidding shall not be required in the following cases: 
 
 (1) Where the service, product or material contracted for is not competitive in nature, and the 

purchasing agent so certifies to the council in writing; 
 
 (2) In the employment of professional services; 
 
 (3) Where the council shall determine that the public interest will best be served by joint purchase 

with, or purchase from, another unit of government; 
 
 (4) Where the council shall determine that, due to market conditions, price instability or other 

reasons, the best interest of the public will be served by using another method of bidding for the 
acquisition of any item or service.  In such circumstances: 

  a. After complying with the notice requirements of section 2-344, a list of potential bidders may 
be established and prequalified by the council; 

  b. In conjunction with establishing the list of prequalified bidders, or at any other time, the 
council may direct the method to be used in obtaining bids; and 

  c. At the first regular council meeting after any purchase, the purchasing agent shall report to 
the council the method of obtaining the bids, the amounts bid, the quantity purchased and the 
price paid. 

 
 (5) When an emergency requires an immediate purchase, the purchasing agent, at the first regular 

council meeting after any such purchase, shall report to the council the nature of the emergency, 
the item, and quantity purchased and the price paid. 

 
Sec. 2-347. - Inspection of materials. 
 
The responsibility for the inspection and acceptance of all materials, supplies and equipment shall rest 
with the ordering department. 
 
Sec. 2-348. - Sale of surplus material. 
  
 (1) A department head having charge of any surplus, obsolete or unused supplies, materials or 

equipment, which may include vehicles, may request that the property be disposed of according 
to the provision of this section.  City council authorization shall be required for the disposal 
or sale  of any work of art, piece of furniture, decorative object, vehicle or the like, which is 
70 years or older. 

 
 (2) The designee appointed by the city manager is authorized to sell the property in any form in the 

most advantageous manner.  The designee may set a minimum sale price and may reject any 
formal or informal bid that, in his/her judgement is not a fair sale price.  Property may be disposed 
of in the following manner: 



   
  a. Sale by auction; 
  b. Sale by sealed bid; 
  c. Solicitation of offers to purchase the asset.  Such solicitations shall be on the condition that 

no offer less than the expected sale price carried on the item, as approved by the city 
manager; 

  d. Sales based upon a negotiated agreement with a particular vendor, provided that such 
vendor must be selected according to an established written procedure which provides a 
mechanism for all interested parties to make proposals in a fair and even manner.  Direct 
negotiations as provided in this subsection may only be used if deemed to be in the best 
interest of the city of Owosso and facts set forth as to why other means are less desirable; 

  e. Sales by a third party selected according to the city's standard procedures for selecting 
providers of services; 

  f. Transferred, with or without compensation, to any government entity, or other organization 
designated as a 501(c)(3) by the Internal Revenue Service; or 

  g. If the property has been designated in a nonusable state by the designee appointed by the 
city manager, it may be disposed of, consistent with the public interest, in any manner as 
deemed appropriate by the city. 

 
 (3) Any compensation resulting from the disposal of surplus property belonging to the city of Owosso 

shall be transferred to the fund from which the property was acquired or most likely acquired. 
 
 (4) The designee appointed by the city manager is authorized to act as the agent for the city in the 

collection, disposal, and execution of agreements for the disposal of surplus property as 
authorized by the city of Owosso or the city manager. 

 
 (5) The designee shall forward any funds collected along with written information to allow the correct 

allocation of the funds and the removal from fixed assets or inventory. 
 
Sec. 2-349. - "Lowest qualified bidder" defined. 
 
The term "lowest qualified bidder," as used in this division, shall mean the lowest bidder having 
qualifications to perform the work which are satisfactory to the council.  The lowest bidder shall be 
determined based on an adjusted bid tabulation which shall be prepared in the following manner: 
 
 (1) To the bid of any bidder which is neither an Owosso-based business nor a county-based business 

shall be added an amount equal to six (6) percent of the bid or two thousand five hundred dollars 
($2,500.00), whichever is less. 

 
 (2) To the bid of any bidder which is a county-based business shall be added an amount equal to 

three (3) percent of the bid or two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), whichever is less; 
provided, however, that if no bid is received from an Owosso-based business, no additional 
amount shall be added to the bid of a county-based business. 

 
 (3) "Owosso-based business" shall be interpreted to mean a business registered with the county 

clerk or a corporation registered with the state having a business address within the city limits 
which pays real and/or personal property taxes levied by the city. 

 
The term "county-based business" shall be interpreted to mean a business other than a city-
based business registered with the county clerk or a corporation registered with the state having 
a business address within the county which pays real and/or personal property taxes levied by 
the county. 

 
 (4) If twenty-five percent (25%) or more of a contract for construction or other services is to be 

subcontracted by an Owosso-based business bidder to a non-city-based business or businesses, 
or by a county-based business bidder to a non-county-based business or businesses, the 



5 

adjusted bid shall be calculated by applying the provisions of sub-paragraphs (1) and (2) within 
this section separately to each portion of the contract based on the status of the contractor or 
subcontractor performing that portion of the contract as an Owosso-based or county-based 
business. 

 
SECTION 3.  REPEAL CLAUSE.  All ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the 
extent of the conflict. 
 
SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 
amendment for any reason is held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 
 
SECTION 5.  AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerkôs office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 6.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect August 7, 2017. 
 
 
 
 











 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: July 12, 2017 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN ADDENDUM TO THE 

OWOSSO COMMUNITY AIRPORT MULTI-UNIT AIRPORT OPERATIONS AND 
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve amendment as proposed by the Shiawassee Airport Board. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The city of Owosso, the city of Corunna, the charter townships of Caledonia and Owosso entered an 
agreement for the establishment, operation and management of the Owosso Community Airport dated 
March 4, 1997.  The Shiawassee Community Airport board has requested a ten year contribution from the 
city of Owosso..  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The addendum for the years 2018 thru 2027 that provides for annual contributions from the city as 
follows: 
 

2018 $ 6,678 
2019 $ 7,346 
2020 $ 7,732 
2021 $ 8,139 
2022 $ 8,568 
2023 $ 9,019 
2024 $ 9,493 
2025 $ 9,993 
2026 $10,519 
2027 $10,725 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN ADDENDUM TO 
THE OWOSSO COMMUNITY AIRPORT MULTI-UNIT AIRPORT 

OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement provides that for a funding plan with each entity making an annual contribution 
in accordance section 15, Cost Sharing Allocations. 
 
WHEREAS, the Shiawassee Airport Board has submitted a request for years 2018 thru 2027; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  the city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to amend an agreement titled Owosso Community Airport Operations and 
Management Agreement dated March 4, 1997. 

 
SECOND: the city council approves and the mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to 

execute an addendum for the years 2018 thru 2027 that provides for annual contributions 
as follows: 

 
2018 $ 6,678 
2019 $ 7,346 
2020 $ 7,732 
2021 $ 8,139 
2022 $ 8,568 
2023 $ 9,019 
2024 $ 9,493 
2025 $ 9,993 
2026 $10,519 
2027 $10,725  

 
THIRD:  the city clerk is authorized and directed to attest to the signature of the mayor and other city 

officials on said agreement and retain in the city clerk's office a fully executed original of 
said agreement for public inspection. 

 



---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Weaver, Craig <craig@mucaroinc.com> 
Date: Mon, Jun 26, 2017 at 9:55 AM 
Subject: Planning Commission 
To: <christopher.eveleth@ci.owosso.mi.us> 
 

Chris, 

It has been my distinct pleasure to participate in the governmental process for the city of 
Owosso through my involvement on the Planning Commission.  The past four years have been 
interesting to say the least.  This has not been an appointment which I have taken lightly.  I feel 
strongly in a citizen’s duty to their community.   

Unfortunately, I have looked ahead at my personal schedule for the upcoming fall and 
winter and see my availability to attend the meetings on a consistent and regular basis to be 
unobtainable.  It is not in the best interest of the commission to have members who miss a lot of 
meetings and is, quite frankly, a disservice to the community.  With this in mind, I regret to 
inform you that I must resign my appointment to the Planning Commission effective August 1st, 
2017.  If my schedule frees up again in the future I would very much welcome being involved 
again in some capacity.  

  

Respectfully, 

Craig Weaver 

 



Date:              07/06/2017

Building Department Report JUNE 2017

From:              Brad Hissong, Building Official

To:                  Owosso City Council

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

Demolition $18,400 $500 3
Electrical $0 $2,155 13
Fence - Residential $10,635 $560 7
INDUSTRIAL, NEW BUILDING/ADDITION$1,075,000 $16,433 2
Mechanical $0 $6,472 35
Non-Res. Add/Alter/Repair $2,176,000 $24,459 3
Non-Res. New $200,000 $3,342 1
Plumbing $0 $3,772 17
Pools $0 $50 1
Res. Add/Alter/Repair $251,728 $3,760 14
Res. Mobile $300,000 $4,680 10
ROOF $91,216 $2,550 18
ROW-ENG $0 $40 2
ROW-SIDEWALK OCCUPANCY $0 $0 2
ROW-UTILITY $0 $60 3
Sign $0 $93 1
VACANT PROPERTY REGISTRATION $0 $300 3
WINDOWS $9,476 $340 2
ZONING COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE $3,000 $250 5

Totals $69,816 142$4,135,455

BUILDING PERMITS ONLY          -       31

2016 COMPARISON TOTALS

$1,286,796 $23,243JUNE 2016 Totals 90



1/7Enforcements By Category 07/06/17

JUNE 2017

RentalPrevious Status

ANIMALS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0391 Resolved 06/13/17 06/15/171324 BROADWAY AV CONTACTED OCCUPANT Y

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0432 LETTER SENT 06/29/17501 E COMSTOCK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0365 LETTER SENT 06/07/17508 E COMSTOCK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

ENF 17-0333 LETTER SENT 06/01/17709 FLETCHER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0358 Resolved 06/06/17 06/14/17427 GROVER ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0387 LETTER SENT 06/13/171107 HIRAM ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0409 LETTER SENT 06/19/17508 E MASON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0360 Resolved 06/06/17 06/14/17503 MILWAUKEE ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0359 LETTER SENT 06/06/17515 S PARK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0334 Resolved 06/01/17 06/12/17550 RYAN ST LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 9

RentalPrevious Status

BUILDING VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0375 Resolved 06/08/17 06/12/17829 S CHESTNUT ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0374 OBTAINED BLDG PERMIT06/08/17707 DIVISION ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0366 LETTER SENT 06/07/17540 GILBERT ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0386 LETTER SENT 06/12/17923 GRAND AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0371 LETTER SENT 06/07/171341 JACKSON DR COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0401 DOOR NOTICE 06/15/171643 LYNN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0367 LETTER SENT 06/07/17320 E MASON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0390 CONTACT WITH HOMEOWNER06/13/17221 E OLIVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N



2/7Enforcements By Category 07/06/17

JUNE 2017

ENF 17-0392 Resolved 06/13/17 06/14/17404 N SAGINAW ST CONTACTED OCCUPANT Y

ENF 17-0417 REF TO BLDG OFFICIAL06/22/171299 S SHIAWASSEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0345 Resolved 06/01/17 06/01/17410 S WASHINGTON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0389 Extension Granted 06/13/17211 E WILLIAMS ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

Total  Entries: 12

RentalPrevious Status

DEAD TREE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0419 LETTER SENT 06/22/17415 GENESEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

DRAIN ISSUES
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0376 Resolved 06/08/17 06/22/17911 S BALL ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

FENCE VIOLATION
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0407 LETTER SENT 06/16/17322 N HICKORY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0414 LETTER SENT 06/21/17813 W STEWART ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total  Entries: 2

RentalPrevious Status

FRONT YARD PARKING
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0395 Resolved 06/14/17 06/14/17817 E COMSTOCK ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0350 Resolved 06/05/17 06/14/171209 N DEWEY ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0408 REF TO CODE ENF 06/16/17825 E EXCHANGE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

Total  Entries: 3



3/7Enforcements By Category 07/06/17

JUNE 2017

RentalPrevious Status

FURNITURE OUTSIDE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0388 Resolved 06/13/17 06/16/17404 N DEWEY ST LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

GARBAGE & DEBRIS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0363 Resolved 06/06/17 06/14/17611 ADAMS ST CONTACT HOMEOWNER Y

ENF 17-0399 LETTER SENT 06/15/17623 ADAMS ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0410 Resolved 06/20/17 06/20/17530 N BALL ST CONTACT OCCUPANT Y

ENF 17-0382 LETTER SENT 06/12/17222 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0404 Resolved 06/15/17 06/20/17338 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0381 CONTACT HOMEOWNER06/09/17406 GILBERT ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0379 Resolved 06/09/17 06/19/17104 N LANSING ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0425 LETTER SENT 06/26/17725 LINGLE AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0349 Resolved 06/02/17 06/07/17432 E MAIN ST A CONTACT HOMEOWNER Y

ENF 17-0370 LETTER SENT 06/07/17917 S PARK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0423 Resolved 06/26/17 06/26/17524 PINE ST CONTACT HOMEOWNER N

ENF 17-0351 Resolved 06/05/17 06/06/17311 W RIDGE ST A REF TO POLICE Y

ENF 17-0368 Resolved 06/07/17 06/08/17112 E RIDGE ST CONTACT HOMEOWNER Y

ENF 17-0362 Resolved 06/06/17 06/09/17225 W RIDGE ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0422 Resolved 06/26/17 07/05/17522 E WILLIAMS ST LETTER SENT Y

Total  Entries: 15

RentalPrevious Status

GARBAGE CANS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0411 Resolved 06/20/17 06/20/17622 N BALL ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0361 LETTER SENT 06/06/17607 FLETCHER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N



4/7Enforcements By Category 07/06/17

JUNE 2017

Total  Entries: 2

RentalPrevious Status

LAWN MAINTENANCE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0336 Dismissed 06/01/17 06/02/17422 ABBOTT ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 17-0400 Resolved 06/15/17 06/22/17623 ADAMS ST REF TO DPW N

ENF 17-0364 Resolved 06/06/17 06/15/17909 ADAMS ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0396 Resolved 06/14/17 06/23/171260 ADAMS ST WO SUBMITTED V

ENF 17-0347 Resolved 06/02/17 06/14/171301 ALLENDALE AV LETTER SENT V

ENF 17-0343 Resolved 06/01/17 06/09/17524 AMENT ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0430 CONTRACTOR TO MOW06/28/17202 N CEDAR ST REF TO CONTRCTR Y

ENF 17-0353 Resolved 06/05/17 06/15/17623 S CHESTNUT ST LETTER SENT VL

ENF 17-0341 Resolved 06/01/17 06/14/17703 CLINTON ST WO SUBMITTED N

ENF 17-0335 Resolved 06/01/17 06/12/17729 CLINTON ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0354 Resolved 06/05/17 06/23/17915 CORUNNA AV LETTER SENT VL

ENF 17-0383 Resolved 06/12/17 06/22/17222 N DEWEY ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0426 INSPECTION PENDING 06/27/17222 N DEWEY ST REF TO DPW Y

ENF 17-0405 Resolved 06/15/17 06/22/17338 N DEWEY ST REF TO DPW N

ENF 17-0377 Resolved 06/08/17 06/21/17805 E EXCHANGE ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0406 Resolved 06/16/17 06/21/17825 E EXCHANGE ST REF TO DPW N

ENF 17-0415 Resolved 06/21/17 07/03/171501 FREEMAN ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 17-0418 Resolved 06/22/17 07/03/17415 GENESEE ST RESOLVED Y

ENF 17-0385 Resolved 06/12/17 06/22/17400 GILBERT ST CLOSED N

ENF 17-0380 Resolved 06/09/17 06/23/17406 GILBERT ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0339 Resolved 06/01/17 06/14/17616 GLENWOOD AV LETTER SENT VL

ENF 17-0413 Resolved 06/21/17 06/30/17635 GLENWOOD AV LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0332 Resolved 06/01/17 06/12/17911 GRAND AV LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0337 Resolved 06/01/17 06/12/17318 W KING ST LETTER SENT N



5/7Enforcements By Category 07/06/17

JUNE 2017

ENF 17-0355 Resolved 06/05/17 06/14/17825 LINGLE AV CLOSED Y

ENF 17-0431 LETTER SENT 06/29/171309 MACK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0338 LETTER SENT 06/01/17MONROE ST REF TO DPW VL

ENF 17-0436 LETTER SENT 06/30/17318 MONROE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0420 Resolved 06/23/17 06/26/171220 W OLIVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0398 Resolved 06/14/17 06/15/17808 S PARK ST CLOSED N

ENF 17-0397 Resolved 06/14/17 06/23/17813 S PARK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VL

ENF 17-0433 CONTRACTOR TO MOW06/30/17813 S PARK ST SENT TO CONTRCTOR VL

ENF 17-0434 Dismissed 06/30/17 07/03/17822 S PARK ST CLOSED N

ENF 17-0435 Dismissed 06/30/17 07/03/17824 S PARK ST CLOSED N

ENF 17-0424 Resolved 06/26/17 07/06/17524 PINE ST RESOLVED N

ENF 17-0427 LETTER SENT 06/27/17910 S SAGINAW ST COMPLAINT LOGGED V

ENF 17-0348 Resolved 06/02/17 06/14/17307 S SHIAWASSEE ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0357 RE-INSPECT PENDING 06/05/171119 S SHIAWASSEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED V

ENF 17-0356 Resolved 06/05/17 06/23/171127 S SHIAWASSEE ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0344 Resolved 06/01/17 06/09/171120 W STEWART ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0402 Resolved 06/15/17 06/23/171514 W STEWART ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 17-0373 Resolved 06/08/17 06/14/171700 W STEWART ST REF TO DPW V

ENF 17-0340 Resolved 06/01/17 06/09/17815 WOODLAWN AV LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 43

RentalPrevious Status

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0384 LETTER SENT 06/12/17216 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

NO BUILDING PERMIT
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed



6/7Enforcements By Category 07/06/17

JUNE 2017

ENF 17-0428 LETTER SENT 06/27/17714 BROADWAY AV COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0393 LETTER SENT 06/14/17825 E EXCHANGE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

ENF 17-0394 Resolved 06/14/17 06/15/17518 GELLATLY CT REF TO MAC N

ENF 17-0403 LETTER SENT 06/15/17421 HURON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

ENF 17-0429 Resolved 06/27/17 06/29/17722 LINGLE AV LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 5

RentalPrevious Status

POOL MAINTENANCE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0342 LETTER SENT 06/01/17655 N SAGINAW ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

RENTAL UNIT VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0346 Resolved 06/01/17 06/15/17524 AMENT ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 17-0352 LETTER SENT 06/05/17318 W KING ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

Total  Entries: 2

RentalPrevious Status

ROW VIOLATIONS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0416 Resolved 06/21/17 06/26/171119 DINGWALL DR LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

RV/CAMPER VIOLATIONS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0372 Resolved 06/07/17 06/14/17420 GROVER ST REF TO MAC N

Total  Entries: 1

SIGN VIOL



7/7Enforcements By Category 07/06/17

JUNE 2017

RentalPrevious Status StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0412 Resolved 06/20/17 06/20/17211 S CEDAR ST LETTER SENT N

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

TIRES
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0421 Resolved 06/23/17 07/05/17518 E WILLIAMS ST LETTER SENT Y

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

VACANT PROPERTY REG
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 17-0369 LETTER SENT 06/07/17703 CLINTON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VACANT

ENF 17-0378 Resolved 06/09/17 06/22/17805 E EXCHANGE ST LETTER SENT VACANT

Total  Entries: 2

*These are on-going complaints and will be resolved with compliance or possible court action.

RENTAL COLUMN DEFINITIONS

Y - Yes, it's a rental
N - No, it's not a rental - owner occupied
APTS - Apartment Building
COMM - Commercial
REPO - Repossession
TRAIL - Trailer Park
VAC - Vacant House
VL - Vacant Lot
IND - Industrial
HOME OCC - Home Occupied

Total Records: 105 Total Pages: 7



























 
 

 OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY  
 
 
 
 202 S. WATER ST.   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0580  · FAX (989) 725-0528 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   July 17, 2017 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   June  2017 Fire & Ambulance Report 
 
 
During the month of July 2017: 
 
 Fire Department responded to 229 Ambulance calls. 
  
 Fire Department responded to 9 Fire calls – 
 
 0 – Accidents w/ Injuries 
 0 – Vehicle vs. Pedestrian     

1 – Building Fire 
 2 – CO2 Detector Activation 
 0 – Line Down 
 0 – Dispatched and Cancelled  
 2 – Police Matter 
 0 – No Incident Found 
 2 – Service Call 
 2 – Unauthorized Burn 
 0 – Good Intent Call 
 0– Wiring Defect  
  
 

 



  1  JUNE 7, 2017 ‐ Draft 

MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY / MAIN STREET 

CITY OF OWOSSO 

JUNE 7, 2017 AT 7:30 AM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Dave Acton at 7:31 a.m. 

ROLL CALL:  Was taken by Recording Secretary, Marty Stinson. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman David Acton, Authority Members Mayor Chris Eveleth, Kenn 
Cushman, Lance Omer (arrived 7:34 a.m.), Theresa Trecha, Kevin Wiles, Jim Woodworth. 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Vice-Chairman Bill Gilbert, Jon Moore. 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Josh Adams, Main Street Manager; Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager & 
Community Development Director; Robert Doran-Brockway, Historical Facilities Director. 

AGENDA:   

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER CUSHMAN AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
TRECHA TO APPROVE THE AGENDA FOR JUNE 7, 2017 AS PRESENTED WITH THE EXCEPTION 
OF MOVING THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS TO THE TOP OF THE AGENDA BEFORE COMMITTEE 
UPDATES. 

 AYES: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED.     

MINUTES:   

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER EVELETH AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
WOODWORTH TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF MAY 3, 2017, AS PRESENTED. 

 AYES:  ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 

1) CHECK REGISTER 

 (SEE BOARD PACKET FOR CHECK REGISTER) 

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER EVELETH AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
CUSHMAN TO APPROVE THE CHECK REGISTER FOR JUNE, 2017 AS PRESENTED. 

Main Street Manager Adams mentioned that he added the credit card reconciliation for board reference. 

7:34 a.m.  Board Member Lance Omer arrived. 

 AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 

2) BUDGET REPORT 

 (SEE BOARD PACKET FOR BUDGET) 



  2  JUNE 7, 2017 ‐ Draft 

Main Street Manager Adams reported that right now the personal property tax has not been received from 
the state because the state missed the treasurer’s e-mail.  The state says we have to wait another year 
for those funds.  We may have to use reserve funds to balance at the end of the fiscal year on June 30th.  
Mr. Adams will be contacting the state.   

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER WILES AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
EVELTH TO APPROVE THE BUDGET REPORT FOR JUNE, 2017 AS PRESENTED. 

 AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 

3)  FAÇADE GRANT UPDATE 

Assistant City Manager Montenegro stated that they are still waiting on the state for their decision.  They 
did pull the application for the Christian Building which will be submitted again in the next round. 

4)  TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY NEXT STEPS 

Mr. Adams noted that dates needed to be changed.  General decision was set for September 7 for 6 -
9:00 pm, and November 1 for 6 - 9:00 pm.  Both meetings will be at City Hall. 

5) OMS/DDA HOSTING ASSOCIATES LEVEL TRAINING (JULY 18TH) 

Mr. Adams reported that we are hosting a state associate training at the Comstock Inn all day.  It was 
requested that the board attend from 1 – 2:30 pm for a round table discussion.   

COMMITTEE UPDATES: 

1) DESIGN AND BUSINESS VITALITY. 

Authority Member Omer reported that the baskets are installed on the Washington Street Bridge.   

Mr. Adams noted that the flower program is in full swing.  Tom Gross of Sunburst Gardens wants to 
maintain the plaza for free.  Part of the irrigation on Exchange and N. Washington was damaged by 
Consumers Energy and needs repair.  He also suggested that the trees in the downtown need trimming 
as he has received numerous complaints that business signs are not visible.   

2) PROMOTION AND OUTREACH. 

Per Mr. Adams Sunday's event is being handled by Theresa Stechschulte.  A lot of downtown streets will 
be closed.  We have the video just about ready to be released next week.  The new website is also ready 
to be launched shortly.  

BOARD COMMENTS:  Discussion about the tremendous cooperation with businesses and how well they 
work with the governmental bodies.  Ms. Montenegro also noted that the state level has mentioned that 
about Owosso. 

Mr. Adams noted that the city may be adding Community Development duties to his job and 
compensating him which will lighten a portion of the DDA budget.  Further discussion will be forthcoming 
at next month’s meeting. 

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER EVELTH AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
WILES TO ADJOURN AT 8:13 A.M. 

 AYES: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 

       ______________________________________ 

mms       Dave Action, Chairman 



Planning Commission–June 26, 2017–Draft Minutes   1 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OWOSSO PLANNING COMMISSION 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
MONDAY, JUNE 26, 2017 – 6:30 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER:   Chairperson Bill Wascher called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Tanya Buckelew, Recording Secretary. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Bill Wascher, Secretary Janae Fear, Commissioners Michelle 

Collison, Dan Law (arrived at 7:15 p.m.), Frank Livingston, Tom Taylor.  
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Vice-Chair Craig Weaver, Commissioners Tom Cook, Brent Smith. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Amber Coe and Guest – 1000 State St. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LIVINGSTON, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER TAYLOR TO 
APPROVE THE AGENDA FOR JUNE 26, 2017. 
 
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LIVINGSTON SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER TAYLOR TO 
APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR THE MAY 22, 2017 MEETING.  
 
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Staff memorandum.      
2. PC minutes from May 22, 2017. 
3. Special use permit application – 1000 State St. 
4. Section 38-380 Off-street parking requirements 
5. Citizen participation plan updating 
 

COMMISSIONER/PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

1. SPECIAL USE PERMIT 1000 STATE ST – Amber Coe, owner, presented her plan for a special 
use permit.  She is currently licensed to operate a child care center in her home for up to six 
children.  She wishes to expand that license to provide care for up to 12 children.  This is 
classified as a group day care home.  Her hours of operation are Monday – Friday 7:00 a.m. – 
5:30 p.m.  There are 2 issues that would need to be resolved for issuance.  1. The play area is 
only 800 square feet and needs to be a minimum of 900 square foot.  Ms. Coe is currently 
working on expanding the play area.  2.  The play area needs to be moved 8 feet from the side 
yard fence.  Ms. Coe says that is feasible to do.   



Planning Commission–June 26, 2017–Draft Minutes   2 
 

 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER TAYLOR AND SUPPORTED BY COMMISSION COLLISON TO 
APPROVE THE APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR 1000 STATE STREET, 
PARCEL # 050-114-001-020-00 AS APPLIED AND ATTACHED HERETO IN PLANS 
SUBMITTED MAY 26, 2017 BASED ON THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA: 
 
APPLICANT MUST MEET 2 REQUIREMENTS: 

1. INCREASE PLAY AREA TO 900 SQUARE FEET 
2. MOVE PLAY AREA 8 FEET FROM SIDE YARD FENCE 

 
GENERAL STANDARDS 

 
The planning commission shall review each application for the purpose of determining that each 
proposed use meets the following standards and in addition, shall find adequate evidence that each use 
on its proposed location will: 
 

a. Be harmonious with and in accordance with the general principals and objectives of the mid-
county land use plan and other approved planning documents of the city. 

HAS BEEN MET 
b. Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be harmonious and appropriate in 

appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a use will 
not change the essential character of the area in which it is proposed. 

HAS BEEN MET 
c. Not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future uses in the same general vicinity and will be a 

substantial improvement to property in the immediate vicinity and to the community as a whole. 
HAS BEEN MET 

d. Be served adequately by essential public facility and services, such as highways, streets, police, 
fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage facility and schools. 

HAS BEEN MET 
e. Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials and equipment or conditions of operation that 

will be detrimental to any person, property, or general welfare by reason of excessive production 
of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. 

HAS BEEN MET 
f. Be necessary to meet the intent and purpose of the zoning regulations; be related to the 

standards established in the ordinance for the land use or activity under consideration; and be 
necessary to insure compliance with the standards. 

HAS BEEN MET 
g. Be related to the valid exercise of police power and purposes which are affected by the proposed 

use or activity. 
HAS BEEN MET 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 AYES: COMMISSIONERS COLLISON, FEAR, LIVINGSTON, TAYLOR AND CHAIRPERSON 

WASCHER. 
 
 NAYS: NONE 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
  



Planning Commission–June 26, 2017–Draft Minutes   3 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW: NONE 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 

1. Review of Section 38-380 (12)e.   
 The Owosso Zoning Board of Appeals is requesting the review and potential revision of 

off-street parking requirements for industrial districts.  
 Two requests have come up in the past two years to request a variance for off-street 

parking in an industrial area.  The ordinance may be somewhat outdated as to the 
requirements based on either number of employees or usable floor space.  With today’s 
technology, employers may have less employees and more automation.  

 Commissioner Fear suggested leaving it as is for now due to only 2 situations has come 
up. 

 Ms. Montenegro will look into getting similar updated language for the next meeting, for 
the Planning Commission to review and see if there is a need to proceed with changes. 

2. Citizen participation plan.  Review of current citizen participation plan. 
 The City of Owosso is interested in applying to the MEDC under the Redevelopment 

Ready Communities Program to become certified as a Redevelopment Ready 
Community (RRC) and receive assistance from the program in promoting sites within the 
community. 

 Ms. Montenegro originally wrote a plan back in 2014.  Community Development Block 
Grants (CDBG) require a citizen participation plan to receive monies through the 
program. 

 The Redevelopment Ready Communities program also requires the plan.  Ms. 
Montenegro presented an update to the 2014 version to the State MEDC. A couple of 
additions will be added and Ms. Montenegro will present the plan again to the Planning 
Commission for approval.  After which, the plan will be presented to the City Council for 
approval.  The City will then have to complete the steps laid out from the MEDC to 
become certified in the Redevelopment Ready Communities program, which could take 1 
-2 years to complete. 

 Ways to reach the public by social media and a survey and evaluation would both be 
goods tools to add to the plan.  Ms. Montenegro will look at other communities for 
additional ideas for the plan. 

 In addition, the Master Plan is due to be updated.   
 

ITEMS OF DISCUSSION:  
 Marijuana discussion regarding the changes coming in December.  Council needs to set dates for 
Medical Marijuana Workshops to inform public of what is coming and get a general census of what the 
public wants. 
COMMISSIONER/PUBLIC COMMENT: NONE 

ADJOURNMENT:  
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LIVINGSTON, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER TAYLOR TO 
ADJOURN AT 7:30 P.M. UNTIL THE NEXT MEETING ON JULY 24, 2017.  
 
YEAS ALL, MOTION CARRIED.  

 
_________________________________________ 

Janae L. Fear, Secretary 


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	170703CouncilMinutes

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1. OrdinanceAmendment-Chapter3AlcoholicLiquor

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. ChemicalBankAccountSignatories
	2. Boards and Commissions Appointments
	3. FreeFoodDistributionPermission
	4. ChangeOrderNo1-2017StreetProgramEngineeringServicesContract
	5. PurchaseAuthorization-FirePickupEquipment&Installation
	6. PurchaseAuthorization-PublicSafetyVehicleEquipmentChangeover
	7. PurchaseAuthorization-InterviewRoomCameraSystem
	8. Warrant546
	9. CheckRegister-June2017

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. OrdinanceAmendment-Chapter2Administration
	2. OakhillCemeteryDrainageIssue
	3. AirportAgreementAmendment
	4. Schedule of City Manager Evaluation

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. CWeaver-ResignationLetter
	2. BuildingReport-June2017
	3. CodeEnforcementReport-June2017
	4. PoliceReports-May&June2017
	5. FireReport-June2017
	6. DDAMinutes-170607
	7. PlanningCommissionMinutes-170626

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



